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To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Wilmington, Delaware 

Report of [ndependent Accountants 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
2400 Eleven Penn Center 
Philadelphia PA 19103-2962 
Telephone (215) 963 8000 
Facsimile (215) 963 8700 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Catholic Diocese Foundation (the 
Foundation) as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 and the related statements of activities and cash flows for 
the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Foundation's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the acc(')unting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

The Foundation has not adopted Statement for Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SF AS 93), 
"Recognition of Depreciation by Not-for-Profit Organizations," which requires not-for-profit 
organizations to recognize depreciation as a cost of using up the future economic benefits of their 
long-lived tangible assets. The effect of not complying with SF AS 93 is not reasonably 
determinable. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of not recognizing depreciation expense of long-lived tangible 
assets as discussed in the preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Foundation as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in confonnity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

DOW 03213 



OUf audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. The supplemental schedules of grants payable as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such infonnation as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, 
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

~~ ;/ /~~ 

September 21, 1998 
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ASSETS 

Cash 
Pooled investments 
Notes receivable 
Real estate 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accrued expenses 
Gr'lnts payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted - general 
Unrestricted - designated 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

CATHOLIC DIOCESE FOUNDA nON 

Balance Sheets 
as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 

1998 
Unrestricted Restricted 

General DeveloQrnent SQecial Tota-I- France Grimes 

$ 729,209 $ 729,209 
44,764,400 $ (190,042) $ 7,349,612 51,923,970 $ 33,756 $ 466,433 

1,510,367 368,739 1,879,106 . 
4,122,267 4,122,267 

m 126,243 $ 178,697. $7,~49.612 $ 58,654,552 $~~~ ~§6,4:3:3 

18,000 18,000 
821,712 8,858 182,000 1,012,570 -_.-

_!I~~lt~ 8,858 182,000 1,030,570 ----- ---

50,286,531 50,286,531 
169,839 7,167,612 7.337,451 

8,756 315,635 
25,000 150,798 

50,286,531 169,839 7,167,612 57,623,982 33,756 466,433 

$ 51,126,243. $ 17'8,697. p,349,612 $ 58,654,552 ~756 $ 466,433 

The accompanying notes are an, integral part of the financial statements. 

,. "-"'t1'~~;'~ 

1997 

__ T9J_al_ Total Total 

$ 729,209 $ 312,791 
$ 500,189 52.424,159 42,179,907 

1,879,106 1,564,050 
4,122,267 4,435,338 

$ 500,189 $!j9,154,741 $ 48,492,086 

18,000 18,000 
1,012,570 1,018,171 

1,030,~]0 J ,036,171 

50.286,531 40,090,275 
7,337,451 6.940.867 

324,391 324.391 248,975 
175,798 175,798 175,798 

500,189 58,124,171 _47,455,915 

L 500,11l9 $59,154,741 $ 48,492,086 
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Revenue: 
Pooled inveslrmml income 
Other inveslrnent income 
Gain on sale of real eslale 
Rental income 
Contributions 

TOlal revenUe 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Grallis • parishes 
Grants - Diocese and agencies 
Grants - non-diocesan agencies 
'Other 

Total program selllices 

Supporting services: 
Accounting and administration 
Professional lees 
Mass slipends 
Real eslale holding costs 

Total supponing services 

Total expenses. 

Excess/(deficiencYJ of lA_enue over expenses 

Nel assets released tram reslrlclion 

Changes In net assels 

Net assels at beginning 01 year 

Net assets at end 01 year 

CATHOLIC DIOCESE FOlINI>ATION 

Statement of Activities 
for the year ended June 30, 1998 

Unreslricted 
D.,ignared 

General Devela~mant ~@L_ Donor Relaled Tolal 

$ 6,372,017 $ 15,234 $1,200,530 $ 7,587,781 $ 
36,339 11,256 47,595 

5,000,730 5.000.730 
5.900 5,900 

34.1BB ~~ 

11,449,174 26,490 1,200,530 12,676,1~.'L 

622,400 150,000 178,039 950,439 
421,710 500,000 921.710 
105.000 105,000 

2,397 $ 1,796 4,193 

1,149,110 150,000 680,436 1,796 --.Ll!O 1,342 

15,983 15,983 
21.873 21,873 

1,040 1.040 
64,912 --_.- 64,912 

103.808 ---',.,.-- 103,808 

I ,252,918 ~.oOO 680,436 1,796 .. 2,085,150 

10,196,256 1123,510l 520,094 !1,79S1 10,591,044 

1,796 1,796 

10,196,256 (123.510) 520,094 10,592,840 

40,090,275 293,349 6,647,518 ._-- 47,031,142 

$_50,286,531 ~ 169,839 lL:!§1&!£ ~ 57,623,982 ~ 

The accompanying noles arc an inlegral pan of the financial stalements_ 

Reslrlcled 

France __ Q.rimes Tolal ~ 

5,165 $ 72,047 $ 77,212 $ 7,66~,993 

47,595 
5,000,730 

5,900 
_d._ 34,IBe 

5,165 72,047 71,212 _!S?~3,406 

950,439 
921,710 
105.000 

---,---- 4,193 

----- 1,981,342 

15,983 
21,Un 

1.040 
... _-- __ 64,912 

_._ 103,808 

------ ~!§!L. 

5,165 72,047 -Zl..?K 11).668,256 

(1,796) (1,796) 

3,369 72,047 75,416 10,668.256 

30,387 ~4,~~ 424,773 47,455,915 

33,756 $ 4GM3:L $ 500,189 $58,124,171 
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Revenue· 
Pooted invasrman1 incoma 
Other investment incomo 
Gain on sale of real estale 
R ental income 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Grants - parishes 
Granls - Diocese and agencies 
Grants· non-diocesan agenci~s 
Olher 

Tolal program services 

Supporting services' 
Accounting and administration 
Prolessionallees 
Mass s!lpe~ds 
Real eslate holding cosls 

Total supporting services 

Total expenses 

Excoss/(doliciency) 01 revenue over expenses 

Nel assels released from reslnction 

Translers 

Charlges in net assels 

Net assels at begmning 01 year 

Nel assats al end of year 

CATHOI.IC DIOCESE FOUNDATION 

Statement of Activities 
for the year ended .June 30, 1997 

Unrestricted 
--~ -. :~--b_esiQ,,~i~d 

. __ 9~n!!r~I ... geve~9P'.'!.'~~! _t::.~,,-a~£!L Sf'eciat Donor Related Tolal 

$ 6,022,085 $ 64,606 $ 503,657 $1,258,067 $ 7,868,415 
8,147 5,250 13,397 

5,75f,200 5,751,200 
8,926 __ ,,_~,!"!.2£ 

11,790,358 89,856 503,657 1,258,067 13,641,9~. 

71l4,800 325,000 29,363 1,119,163 
152,350 1.724,140 173,480 2,049,970 
125,000 100,OQO 225,000 

3,234 t ___ 2,292 5,526 

1,045,384 425,000 ',724,140 202,843 2292 - .. -~ 3,399,659 

26,153 26,153 
47,610 47,610 . 

1,040 1,040 
03,804 83,804 

J~MQL ----- 158,607 

1,203,991 425,000 1,724,140 ~4~_ --.... --~ 3,558,266 

10,586,367 (335,144) ( 1,220,483) 1,055,224 (2,292) 10,083,672 

2,292 2,292 

281,801 {281,801} -----
to,868,I68 (616,945) (1,220,483) 1,055,224 10,085,964 

_...?~,222,107 910,294 --.1..~?.Q,48~ . _5,592,294 36,945,178 

~,O90,275 1-293 ,3.49 -
~ 6,647,516 $ 47,031,142 

The accompanying notes arc an integral pan of the financial statements. 

';;1~ 

AesJ!icted 

Franca .. Qrlmes Tolal -I2!!!! 
$ 5,387 $ 70,972 $ 763,659 $ 7,944,774 

13,397 
5,751,200 

8,926 

5,387 70,972 76,359 13,718,297 

1,119,163 
2,049_970 

225,000 
--~ .. ~,-- 5,526 

-_ .... 3,399,659 

26,153 
47,610 

1,040 

.~~.---
83,804 

-"-- 158,607 

--.-.- ,,"-----<--
3,558,266 

5',387 70,972 16,359 10,160,031 

(2,292) (2,292) 

, ... ----
3,O~5 70,972 74,067 10,160,031 

27,292 __ 3g~_i.. 350,706 37,295,884 

L......illI,3BL ~_ .. 394,3_86 i.1~773_ $ 4ZA55,915 



CATHOLIC DIOCESE FOUNDATION 

Statements of Cash Flows 
for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Changes in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 

cash used in operating activities: 
Net appreciation on pooled investments 
Gain on sale of real estate 
Decrease in grants payable 
Increase in accrued expenses 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Amounts drawn from pooled investments 

for current operations 
Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments 
Deposits into pooled investments 
Proceeds from the sale of real estate 
Purchase of real estate 
Issuance of notes receivable 
Repayments of notes receivable 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 
Cash at beginning of year 

S 10,668,256 

(6,577,9"75) 
(5,000,730) 

(5,601 ) 

(916,050) 

1,670,741 
(1,087,018) 
(4,250,000) 
5,421,592 
(107,791) 
(349,306) 

34.250 

1,332,468 

416,418 
312,791 

Cash at end of year $ 729,209 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part ofthe financial statements. 

6 

$10,160,031 

$ 

(6,767,926) 
(5,751,200) 
(3,110,329) . 

18,000 

(5,451,424) 

6,582,764 
(1,176,848) 
(6,096,579) 

. 6,327,619 
(281,801) 

38,375 

5,393.530 

(57,894) 
370,685 

312,791 
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CATHOLIC DIOCESE FOUNDATIO~ 

Notes to Financial Statements 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Nature of Operations: 

The Catholic Diocese Foundation (the Foundation) was established in 1928 for the promotion 
of Catholic Religion, Catholic Education, and charity in:the Catholic Diocese of :Wilmington. 
The Foundation assists parishes in getting established, aids in their expansion, and funds 
programs of education and charity. A substantial portion of the revenue for the Foundation is 
generated through income on investments. 

Basis of Reporting: 

The Foundation reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial 
statemems in confonnity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and' 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit Organizations." 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset 
categories follows: 

• 

• 

• 

Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of 
operations and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be 
limited by other factors such as by contract or board designation. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed 
restrictions have not been met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose 
of the proceeds is not permanently restricted. 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require 
by donor restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be 
made available for operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 

7 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

Con tributions: 

Contributions are recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions 
Made." ~oncash contributions are recorded at fair value on the date of donation. 
Contributions of cash and other non-capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted 
operating revenue if the contributions are received with donor stipUlations that limit the use 
of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net 
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as 
net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions, which are received and 
expended within the same fiscal year, are reported as unrestricted revenues. 

Pooled Investments: 

Pooled investments are stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statement of 
activities includes interest, dividends, and net appreciation. Net appreciation includes 
realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consulting and custodial costs. 

The Foundation participates with the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the Diocese) and 
other affiliated organizations in an investment pool which is held in a custody account at 
Delaware Trust Capital Management. The pool is invested in a combination of fixed income 
and equity securities and mutual funds. 

The Foundation utilizes a total return policy to determine the level of support for operations 
and capital expenditures from pooled investments. The level of support is determined 
annually. 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. 
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level. of uncertainty 
related to changes in the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that 
changes in risks in the near term could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. 

Notes Receiyable: 

Many notes receivable maintained by the Foundation are non-interest bearing. These 
balances include receivables to be repaid at the Bishop's discretion as well as receivables with 
definitive repayment terms. 

8 
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1. 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

Real Estate: 

Real estate consists of buildings and land. All acquisitions are capitalized at cost, \vhen 
purchased, or at fair value at date of gift, when donated. The properties were acquired with 
the intent that they would be used for future Diocesan needs. 

f 
f· ; Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SF AS 93), "Recognition of 

2. 

Depreciation by Not-for-Profit Organizations," requires not-for-profit organizations to 
recognize depreciation as a cost of using up the future benefits of their long-lived tangible 
assets. The Foundation has not adopted SF AS 93. The effect of not complying with SFAS 
93 is not reasonably determinable. 

Grants Payable: 

Grants payable are unconditional promises to give that have been expensed in the period 
pledged. 

Pooled Investments: 

The Foundation invests in a combination of fixed income and equity securities and mutual 
funds. The composition of pooled investments as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 was as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed income 
Domestic equity 
International equity 

Total pooled investments 

$ 2,478,585 
10,926,023 
30,671,157 

8,348,394 

$ (14,897) 
9,832,246 

25,139,402 
7,223,156 

$ 52,424,159 $ 42,179,907 

The fair value of these investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30, 
1998 and 1997. 

Pooled investment income for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 was comprised of the 
following: . 

Interest and dividends 
Net appreciation 

Pooled investment income 

9 
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$ 1,087,018 
6,577,975 

$ 7,664,993 

$ 1,176,848 
6,767,926 

$ 7,944,774 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

Pooled Investments, continued: 

The pooled investment income was net of custodial and advisory fees in the amounts of 
5305,104 and $270,043 for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

3. Notes Receivable: 

Notes receivable at June 30, 1998 and 1997 were as follows: 

The following receivables, principafly land grants, are 
to be repaid at the Bishop's discretion and are 
non-interest bearing: 

Church of the Holy Child 
Holy Family 
Resurrection Parish 
St. Catherine of Siena 
St. Dennis 
St. Michael the Archangel 
St. Elizabeth Ann Seton 
St. Joseph, Middletown 
St. Luke's and St. Andrew's 
St. Luke's and St. Andrew's 
SI. Matthew 
St. Polycarp 

10 

$ 58,000 
6,800 

50,000 
100,000 

69,400 
71,256 

. 181,500 
112,710 
259',900 

71,251 
35,000 
20,000 

1,035,817 

$ 58,000 
6,800 

50,000 
100,000 

69,400 
71,256 

181,500 
112,710 
259,900 

71,251 
35,000 
20,000 

1,035,817 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

Notes Receivable, continued: 

1998 
The following receivables have payment terms 

as stated below: 
Capuchin Poor Clare Nuns, Inc. (property acquisition) -

payable at the discretion of the Board of Directors 
of the Foundation" not callable until 2012, 
non-interest bearing $ 75,000 

St. Catherine of Siena (construction) - payable in 16 
semiannual installments of $6,250 beginning 
in June 1995, non-interest bearing 56,250 

St. Elizabeth (fire code improvement) - payable in 5 
annual installments of$5,875 beginning in 
October 1993, non-interest bearing 

St. Luke's and St. Andrew's (building acquisition) _ 
payable in 180 monthly payments of $1,906 with 
6% interest, beginning September 1998 343,300 

St. Luke's and St. Andrew's (capital improvements) _ 
payable in 5 annual installments of $10,000 
beginning in March 1994,non-interest bearing 

St. Patrick (parking lot) - payable in 15 an nual 
10,000 

installments of$10,OOO beginning in 
December 1994, non-interest bearing 110,000 

Immaculate Conception, Marydel (property acquisition)-
terms require 2 years of semi-annual interest 
only payments beginning in November 1994 at 
4%, then 16 semiannual payments of S5,875, 
which include interest. The 16 payments of $5,875 
have been deferred and began November 1997 73,739 

St. Francis de Sales (property acquisition) - annual 
interest only for five years until January 2001, then 
payable in 30 semiannual installments of $5,834 
plus interest at 3% 

175,000 

843,289 

Total notes receivable $ 1,879,106 

Rental Income: 

1997 

$ 75,000 

68,750 

5,875 

10,000 

120,000 

73,608 

175,000 

528,233 

$ 1,564,050 

The Foundation has rental agreement with tenants \vho rent houses and farmland owned by 
the Foundation. The terms of the rental agreements vary from property to property. Total. 
rental income for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 was $5,900 and $8,926, 
respectively. 

11 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

Related Party Transactions: 

Certain members of the Foundation's board are also board members of certain affiliated 
corporations. 

The Foundation rents office space from the Diocese. Total rental expense for the years ended 
June 30, 1998 and 1997 was $1,788 and $1,716, respectively. In addition, the Diocese 
provides administrative services for the Foundation. Employees are paid by the Diocese ano 
all related payroll costs are reimbursed by the Foundation. Total labor expense including 
payroll taxes for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 was $12,926 and $23,142, 
respectively, and is included as accounting and administrative expenses in the statement of 
activities. 

The Foundation awarded grants to the following related organizations: 

Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
St Mark's High School, Inc. 
St. Thomas More Academy, Inc. 
Catholic Press of Wilmington, Inc. 

$ 467,100 
60,000 

400,000 

$ i ,987,470 
55,500 

7,000 

During 1997, the Foundation transferred $4,424,140 to the Diocese's Education Fund. Of 
this amount, $3,000,000 represented a grant payable as of June 30, 1996 to provide 
supplements to teachers' salaries at parish and Diocesan elementary and secondary schools. 

Grants payable to related parties as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 amounted to $1,012,570 and 
$1,018,171, respectively, as detailed in the supplemental schedules of grants payable. 

Certain buildings owned by the Foundation are used by Catholic Charities, Inc. without 
charge. The estimated fair value of the contributed facilities usage is not significant. 

Commitments: 

On September 19, 1996, the Board approved a non-interest bearing loan up to $200,000 to St. 
Elizabeth Ann Seton from the Development Fund. Repayment terms begin in the sixth year 
after the loan is disbursed. This loan was disbursed on July 23, 1998. 

Income Taxes: 

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from 
federal taxation under Section 501 (c )(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

12 
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CATHOLIC DIOCESE FOUNDATION 

Supplemental Schedule of Grants Payable 
as of June 30, 1998 

The Foundation's grants payable as of June 30, 1998 are surruparized as follows: 

Cathedral of S1. Peter 
Children's Home 
Christ Our King Parish 
Christ Our King School 
Diocese of Wilmington 
Diocese of Wilmington 
Diocese of Wilmington 
Diocese of Wilmington 
Diocese of Wilmington 
Diocese of Wilmington 

Schools 
Holy Rosary 
Old Bohemia Society 
St. Edmond's Academy 
St. Mark's High School 
St. Mark's High School 
st. Paul 

Purpose 

Renovations to Bathroom 
Capital improvements 
Parish Nurse Program 
1999 Budget Support 
1998-1-999 Training Budget (Office of Deacons) 
Development & Training of Spiritual Directors 
Millennium Committee program expenses 
Legal fees 
Bishop's discretionary ministry fund 
Technology person for all schools 

Conditional for building repairs 
St. Francis Xavier Church 
Capital campaign (5 year pledge) 
Capital improvements & equipment 
Computer equipment for Library & Classrooms 
1999 Budget Support 

13 

Payable 

$ 107,000 
8,858 

10,000 
160,000 
144,000 
35,000 
32,500 
50,000 
25,000 
45,000 

5,000 
75,000 
10,000 
3,212 

60,000 
242,000 

$ 1,012,570 
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CATHOLIC DIOCESE FOUNDATION 

Supplemental Schedule of Grants Payable 
as of June 30, 1997 

The Foundation's grants payable as of June 30, 1997 are summarized as follows: 

Pur~ose 

Children's Home Capital improvements 
Children's Home Capital Improvements 
Christ Our King School Budget support 
Diocese of Wilmington Legal fees 
Diocese of Wilmington Bishop's discretionary ministry fund 
Diocese of Wilmington 1 st years of Deacon Formation Program 
Eastern Shore Cooperative Religious education support for 1998 
Holy Rosary Conditional for building repairs 
Old Bohemia Society St. Francis Xavier Church 
Saint Edmund's Academy Capital campaign 
St. Elizabeth High School Upgrade electrical system 
St. Mark's High School Capital equipment 
SI. Mark's High School Capital improvements and equipment 
SI. Matthew Instafi windows in school 
SI. Paul School Budget support 

Total grants payable $ 

14 

Pa:table 

$ 150,000 
100,000 
160,000 
35,250 
25,000 
73,480 
29,600 
5,000 

75,000 
20,000 
35,000 

9,341 
55,500 
35,000 

210,000 

1,018,171 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington 
XXIII. FINANCIAL STATE OF THE DIOCESE 

Statistical Index 

Catholic Diocese Foundation - Budget 

The Foundation supports educational, charitable and religious projects within the 
Diocese of Wilmington. Only amounts available for grants from the General Fund 
are budgeted. Budgeted amounts for the five years ending June 30 are as follows: 

2003 $1,600,000 
2002 $1,800,000 
2001 $1,750,000 
2000 $1,750,000 
1999 $1,600,000 
1998 $1,600,000 
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Enclosures: 

Catholic Diocese of Wilmington 
XXIll. FINANCIAL STATE OF THE DIOCESE 

Statistical Index 

Entity: Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 30,2002 and 2001 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 

• Budget summary for the year ending June 30,2003 

4 

DOW 03229 



Catholic Ministry to the 
Elderly, Inc. 
Financial Statements and Supplemental Schedules 
HUD Project No. 032-EH002 
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PrfcewaterhouseCoopers UP 
Two Commerce Square, Sui:e 1700 
2001 Market Street 
Philadelphia ?A 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 30110 
Facsimile (267) 330 3300 

Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc, 
Wilmington, Delaware 

In oUf opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of a~tivities and changes in 
net assets and cash flows present fairly, in all materj,~ respects, the fiaancial position of Catholic 
Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. (the Ministry) HUD Project No. 032-EH002 as of June 30,2002 and 2001, 
end the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of .America. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Ministry's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in 
accordance with aUditing standards generally accepted in the Gnited States qf America and the 
s:'andards applicable to fmancial statements contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Conptroller General of the United States wbich require ,that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance~bout whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
and evaluating the overall finandal statement presentation. Vole believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dC!.ted August 9, 
2002 on our consideration of the Minish)"s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and. grants. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be 
read in conjunction with tbis report in considering the results of our audit. 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of felieral awards is presented for the purposes of 
additional analysis as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part ofthe basic 
financial statements. Such information has been s\!bj ected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

August 9, 2002 
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Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Balance Sheets 
As of June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Assets: 

Cash 

In vestments whose use is limited 

Land 

Building and improvements (net of accumulated 

depreciation of $1,70 1 ,900 and $1,6]1,666) 

Equipment (net of accumulated depreciation of 

$154,727 and $150,638) 

Total assets 

Liabilities and net assets: 

Accouats payable and accrued expenses 

Defer:-ed rental income 

Mortgage payable 

Tenant security deposits 

Totalliabi1ities 

Net assets: 

Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

. Total net assets 

Totalli.abilities aad net assets 

2002 

$ 6,388 

328,273 

18,240 

1,577,767 

2,951 

S 1,933,619 

$ 74,924 

4,130 

2,443,008 

28,399 

2,550,461 

(916,716) 

299,874 

(616,842) 

$l,933,619 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancia1 statements. 

- 2 -

2001 

$ 15,873 

390,016 

18,240 

1,606,176 

7,040 

S2,037,345 

$ 49,969 

5,826 

2,499,247 

29,950 

2,584,992 

(907,713) 

360,066 

(547,647) 

$2,037,345 
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Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

{j nrestricted 
Revenue: 

Rental income - dwelling units S 271,302 
Rental income - rent supplements 301,371 
Investment income 

Total revenue 572,673 

Expenses: 
General and administrative 128,827 
Operating 37,777 
Maintenance 128,812 
Payroll taxes and insurance 71,501 
Interest on debt 187,910 
Depreciation 94,323 

Total expenses 649,150 

(Deficiency)/excess of revenue over expenses (76,477) 

Net assets released from restrictions: 
HUD monthly requirement (20,340) 
Authorized HUD transfers, net 87,814 

Total net assets released from restrictions 67,474 

Changes in net assets (9,003) 

1\et assets at beginning of year (907,713) 

1\ et assets at end of year $ (916,716) 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ 

7,282 

7,282 

7,282 

20,340 
(87,814) 

(67,474) 

(60,192) 

360,066 

$299,874 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial statements. 

- 3 -

Total 

$ 271,302 
301,371 

7,282 

579,955 

128,827 
37,777 

128,812 
71,501 

187,910 
94,323 

649,150 

(69,195) 

(69,195) 

(547,647) 

$(616,842) 
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Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2001 

Unrestricted 
Revenue: 

Rental income - dwelling units $ 255,601 
Rental income - rent supplements 325,nl 
Investment income 

Total revenue 581,522 

Expenses: 
General and administrative 113,487 
Operating 40,224 
Maintec.ance 119,413 
Payroll taxes and insurance 67,716 
Interest on debt 192,774 
Depreciation 94,323 

Total expenses 627,937 

(Deficiency)/excess of revenue over ex;>enses (46,415) 

Net assets released from restrictions: 
HLlD monthly requirer::lent (20,340) 
Authorized HUD transfers, net 20,235 

Total net assets released fron: restrictions (105) 

Changes .in net assets (46,520) 

Net assets at beginning of year . (861,193) 

Net assets at end of year $ (907,713) 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ 18,471 

18,471 

18,471 

20,340 
{20,235) 

105 

18,576 

341,490 

$ 360,066 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the flllancial statements. 
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Total 

$ 255,601 
325,921 

18,471 

599,993 

113,487 
40,224 

119,413 
67,716 

192,774 
94,323 

627,937 

(27,944) 

(27,944) 

(519,703) 

$ (547,647) 
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Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Cash f!.ows from operating activities: 

Changes i.n net assets 
Adjustmen',s to reconcile changes in net assets to net 

cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Net appreciation of investments 
(Decrease) increase in deferred rental income 
fncrease in acco'Jnts payab:e a:ld accrued expenses 

. Net cash provided by operating acti,:,ities 

Cash flows fro~ investing activities: 

Deposits in investments 
HUD authorized transfers 
Purchase of buildings and improvements and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activi:ies: 

Payments ofr.J.ortgage payable 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net (decrease) I increase in cash 

Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 

Supp~e~nental disclosures of cash flow information: 

Cash paid for interest 

2002 2001 

$ (69,195) $ (27,944) 

94,323 94,323 

(7,282) (18,471) 

(1,696) 5,365 

24,955 6,843 

41,105 60,116 

(20,340) (20,340) 

87,814 20,235 

(61,825) 

5,649 (105) 

(56,239) (52,890) 

(56,239) (52,890) 

(9,485) 7,121 

15,873 8,752 

$ 6,388 $ 15,873 

$188,609 $192,774 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial statements. 

- 5 -
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Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Kature of Operations 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. (the Mi:1istry) was inco:pora:'ed in the State of Delaware OIl 

January 6,1978. The Ministry owns and operates the Marydaie Retirement Community, a HUD 
subsidized housbg project for low income elderly and handicapped individuals. The site on which the 
p:-oject is located was a gift from the Cat..1.olic Diocese Foundation. Construction was comple~ed 3.'ld 
occupancy of the apartments began OIl November 28, 1980. 

Basis of Reporting 
Th Ministry reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in ~he United States of America requires 
:r.anagement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities a:1d disclosure of cor:tingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A descrip:ion of the three net asset classifications 
follows: 

Unrestricted Net Assets include assets that are available for the support of operations and whose 
use is not externally restricted, although their use may be limited by other factors such as by 
contract or board designation. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets inc~ude replacement reserves and residual receipts that a:-e 
temporarily restricted based on the terms ofthe Ministry's agreement with the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (BUD). 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, a:Jd pledges which require ::,y donor 
restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income ::,e made available for 
operations in accordance with donor restrictions. There are no permanently restricted net assets at 
June 30,2002 and 2001. 

In vestments 
Investments are stated at market value. Investment income on the statement of activities includes 
interest and dividends. 

Building and Improvements and Equipment 
Building and improvements and equipment are recorded at historical cost or fair market .value at the 
date of donation, less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments 
which extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized; expenditures for 
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is provided over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from 5 years to 40 years, on a straight-line basis. 

-6· 
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Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 3D, 2002 and 2001 

Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the relate<i carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Management does 
not believe that there are any impairments as of June 30, 2002 or 2001. 

Contributed Services 
The Ministry receives services from unpaid volunteers in o:-ganizing activities for residents of the 
community. The value of these contibuted services is not reflected in the financial statements since 

. the services provided by ;he volunteers do not require specialized skills and would not be purchased 
by the Ministry if the volunteer services were not available. 

Reclassifications 
Certain balances in the 200 I statemer.ts have been reclassified to conform to the 2002 presentation. 

2. Investments 

The MinistJ)', under terms of its agreeme::J.t with BUD, has estab~ished accounts to segregate tenant 
secl:.nty deposits, replacement reserves and residual receipts. Tr.ese accounts comprise the bvestment 
an10unts on the balance sheet. The funds, which are invested in money market accounts, are not 
available for current use without approval of BUD and, accordingly, have bee:a classified as 
temporarily restricted assets. 

The composition of investments as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 was as follows: 

Tenant security deposits 

Replacement rese:-ves 

Resicual receipts 

Replacement Reserves 

2002 2001 

$ 28,399 

205,188 

94,686 

$ 328,273 

$ 29,950 

60,158 

299,908 

S 390,016 

The Ministry is required by HUD to deposit $1,695 monthly into a restricted account. These funds 
are to be used only to fimd extraordinary repair and maintenance items of to replace capital items. 

Residual Receipts 
The Ministry is alSo required by HUD to deposit any residual receipts at year-end into a restricted 
aCCOllnt. i\ny disbursements from this account must be approved by HUD. These funds are held in a 
custody account at Mellon Trust, which is managed by The Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the 
Diocese). 

-7-
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Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

3. Mortgage Payable 

Significantly, all building and improvements are subject to a mortgage. The o;Jtstanding mortgage 
payable balance at June 30,2002 and 2001 was $2,443,008 and $2,499,247, respectively. Payments 
are due in monthly installments of $20,472, including interest at 7;625%, due in i\ugust, 2022. The 
following are mat:J.rities of the mortgage payable for each ofthe next five years and in aggregate: 

2003 $ 61,573 

2004 66,436 

2005 71,682 

2006 77,343 

2007 80,451 

Thereafter 2,085,523 

The interest expense on this mortgage during the years endec June 30, 2002 a:ld 2001 was $187,910 
a.,.,d $192,774, respectively. 

4. Pension Plan 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributoI)1 defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time lay 
employees of the Diocese, induding the Ministry. The Plan calls for benefits to be paid to eligible 
employees at retirement based on compensation, as defined. Contributions to the Plan from the 
Ministry reHect an allocation by the Diocese based on Ministry eiigible saLaries as a percentage of 
total eligible salaries. The pension expense for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 was $6,423 
and $7,525, respec:ively, and is reflected in general and administrative expenses in the statement of 
activities. 

5. Related Party Transactions 

Certain members of the Ministry'S Board of Directors are also members of the Finance Council of the 
Diocese. 

The Diocese pays, on behalf of the Ministry, the group term life insurance and long-term disability 
benefits. These expenses are not reimbursed or reflected on the financial statements of the Ministry 
due to their immateriality. 

As of June 30, 2002, the Ministry accrued approximately $8,939 related to pension expense payable 
and $3,000 accounts payable to the Diocese. This amo'Jnt is included in accounts payable and accrued 
expenses on the balance sheet. 

6. Income Taxes 

The MinisLry is a not-for-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal 
taxation under Section 50l(c)(3) for the Internal Revenue Code. 

-8-
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Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

Federal Grantor/Program Title 

U.S. Department of Housing and U:-ban Development/ 

Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments 

-9-

CFDA Federal 
Number Expenditures 

[4.195 S 301,371 
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Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
June 30,2002 and 2001 

1. General 

The accompacying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activities in the federal 
assistance programs of the Ministry. All financial awards received directly from federal agencies are 
included on the schedule. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requireme:1ts ofOMB Circular A-l33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. 

2. Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Aw'arcs has been prepared on the accrual basis of 
a.ccounting. Management believes all federal awards considered necessary for a fai: presentation in 
accordance w:th Government Auditing Standards have bee::1 included. 

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements 

Federal expenditures as reported 0:1 the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal awards agree to expenditures 
reported on ~he Statement of Activities. 

-10-

DOW 03241 



PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Two Commerce SquJre, SJite 1700 
2001 Market Street 
Philadelphia PA 19103·7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (267) 330 3]00 

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance 
and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

We have audited the financial st,atements of Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. (the Ministry) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report ~ereon dated August 9,2002. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to fmaneial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued b)" the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Ministry's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of ouT audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncomplian::e that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal 'Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Ministry's internal control over financial 
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the fInancial statements and not to provide assurance on the'internal control over financial reporting. 
Our consideration of the internal control over fmancial reporting would not necessarily disclose all 
matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material 
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal' control 
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would 
be material in relation to the fmancial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a 
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no 
matters involving the internal control over fmancial reporting and its operation that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, we ndted other matters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting, which we have reported to management of the Ministry in a separate letter dated August 9, 
2002. 
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This report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of the Ministry's board of directors, federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

August 9, 2002 
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Two Commerce Square, Su}te 1700 
2001 Ma rket Street 

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance 
with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program 
and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance 

with OMB Circular A-133 

To the Board of Directors' 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

Compliance 

Philadelphia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (267) 330 3300 

We have audited the compliance of Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. (the Minjstry) with the types 
of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office ojManagement and Budget (OMB) Circular 
A-J 33 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to it~ plajor federal program for the year ended 
June 30, 2002. The Ministry's major federal program is identified in the SchedUle of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards - Federal Program Detail in the Schedule of the U. S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development Real Estate Assessment Center - Electronic Submission. Compliance with the 
requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the 
responsibility of the Ministry's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Minjstry's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with aUditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 1..'1 Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-l33, 
Audits ojStates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB 
Circular A-l33 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about the Ministry's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Ministry's 
compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the Ministry complied, in all ma~eria1 respects, with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2002 .. 
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rnternal Control over Compliance 

The management of the Ministry is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and g:-ants applicabie to 
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Ministry's internal control 
ov.er compliance with requiremepts that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compliance and to test and report on internal con'J"ol over compliance in accordance with OMB 
Circular A-l33. . 

Our cor.sideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily-disclose all matters in 
the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material wealmess is a condition in which the 
design or operation of one or more of the intenal control components does not reduce to a relatively 
low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regula~ions, contracts and 
grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be 
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we 
cO!lsider'to be material weaknesses. 

Tnis report is intended solely for the information and use of the Ministry's board of directors, federal 
awarCing agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

!?t/{//Vdtt~~!Q> 
August 9, 2002 

-i4-
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Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

Financial Statements 

(iY Type of auditor's report issued: 

Oi) Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material wea1cness(es) identified? 
Reportable condition(s) identified not considered to be 
material weaknesses? 

(iii) K oncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

(iv) Internal control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Reportable condition(s) identified that are not considered 
to be material weaknesses? 

(v) Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major 
programs: 

(vi) Any audit fmdings disclosed that a:e required to be reported 
in accordance with Circular A-133, Section .51O(a)? 

(vii) Identification of maj or programs: 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development! 
Section 8 Housing Assistance Program 

(viii) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: . 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

No matters were Tepor-ed. 

Section III - Federal A ward Findings and Questioned Costs 

No matters were reported. 

-15-

Unqualified 

_yes .1L no 

_yes l none reported 

_yes X no 

_yes X no 

_yes X none reported 

Unqualified 

_yes .1L no 

CFDA Number(s) 

14.195 

$300,000 
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CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

REPORT ON AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Al'iD SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES 

HUD PROJECT NO. 032-EH002 
for the years ended June 30,1998 and 1997 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LlP 
2400 Eleven Penn Center 

. Philadelphia PA 19103-2962 
Telephone (215) 963 8000 
Facsimile (215j 963 8700 

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of activities and cash 
flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Catholic Ministry to the 
Elderly, Inc. (the Ministry) BUD Project No. 032-EH002 as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 and the 
results of their operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Ministry's 
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States, which require that' we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. \Ve believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
the opinion expressed above. 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The supplementary data listed in the table of contents is presented for the purpose 
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Ministry. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued reports dated August 7, 
1998 on our consideration of the Ministry's internal controls, on the Ministry's compliance with 
specific requirements applicable to affirmative fair housing, and on the Ministry's compliance with 
specific requirements applicable to major HUD programs. 

August 7, 1998 

1 
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CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

Balance Sheets 
as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 

1998 
Temporarily 

Unrestricted Restricted 

Assets: 
Cash $ 10,372 
Investments $ 381,678 
Rent receivable 126 
Land 18,240 
Building and improvements (net of accumulated 

depreciation of $1,344,450 and $1,258,793) 1,823,199 
Equipment (net of accumulated depreciation of 

$131,549 and $118,714) 19,194 

Total assets $ 1,871,131 $ 381,678 

Liabilities and net assets: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 44,198 
Deferred rental income 247 
Mortgage payable 2,646,586 
Tenant security deposits 24,299 

Total liabilities 2,691,031 24,299 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted (819,900) 
Temporarily restricted 357,379 

Total net assets (819,900) 357,379 

Total liabilities and net assets $1,871,131 $ 381,678 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the fInancialstaternents. 
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Total 

$ 10,372 
381,678 

126 
18,240 

1,823,199 

19,194 

$ 2,252,809 

44,198 
247 

2,646,586 
24,299 

2,715,330 

(819,900) 
357,379 

(462,521) 

$ 2,252,809 

1997 
Total 

$ 37,039 
435,954 

18,240 

1,859,501 

22,800 

$ 2,373,534 

41,425 

2,688,692 
24,473 

2,754,590 

(792,537) 
411,481 

(381,056) 

$ 2,373,534 
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CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

Statement of Activities 
for the year ended June 30, 1998 

Unrestricted 

Revenue: 
Rental income - dwelling units $ 190,535 
Rental income - rent supplements 376,624 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous income 950 

Total revenue 568,109 

Expenses: 
General and administrative 96,790 
Operating 44,195 
Maintenance 167,176 
Taxes and insurance 56,975 
Interest on debt 203,294 
Depreciation 98,492 

Total expenses 666,922 

(Deficiency)/excess of revenue over expenses (98,813) 

Net assets released from restrictions: 
HUD monthly requirement (20,340) 
Authorized HUD transfers, net 91,790 

Total net assets released from 
restrictions 71,450 

Changes in net assets {27,363} 

Net assets at beginning of year (792,537) 

Net assets at end of year $ (819,900) 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 
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Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ 17,348 

17,348 

17,348 

20,340 
(91,790) 

(71,450) 

(54,102) 

411,481 

$ 357,379 

Total 

$ 190,535 
376,624 

17,348 
950 

585,457 

96,790 
44,195 

167,176 
56,975 

20.3,294 
98,492 

566,922 

(81,465) 

(81,465) 

(381,056) 

$ (462,521) 
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CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

Statement of Activities 
for the year ended June 30, 1997 

Unrestricted 

Revenue: 
Rental income - dwelling units $ 200,003 
Rental income - rent supplements 383,415 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous income 20,472 

Total revenue 603,890 

Expenses: 
General and administrative 103,394 
Operating 42,029 
Maintenance 157,373 
Taxes and insurance 57,544 
I n~erest on debt 206,395 
Depreciation 93,566 

Total expenses 660,301 

(Deficiency)/excess of revenue over expenses (56,411) 

Net assets released from restrictions: 
HUD monthly requirement (20,340) 
Authorized HUD transfers, net 55,500 

Total net assets released from 
restrictions 35,160 

Changes in net assets (21,251) 

Net assets at beginning of year (771,286) 

Net assets at end of year $ (792,537) 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 
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Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ 20,074 

20,074 

20,074 

20,340 
(55,500) 

(35,160) 

(15,086) 

426,567 

$ 411,481 

Total 

$ 200,003 
383,415 

20,074 
20,472 

623,964 

103,394 
42,029 

157,373 
57,544 

206,395 
93,566 

660,301 

(36,337) 

(36,337) 

(344,719) 

$ (381,056) 
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CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
for the years ended June 30,1998 and 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Changes in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net 

cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Investment income 
Increase in rental receivable 
Increase in deferred rental income 
Increase in accounts pay~ble and accrued expenses 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Net transfer from restricted funds 
Purchase of buildings and improvements and equipment 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Payments of mortgage payable 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash 
Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: 
Cash paid for interest 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 
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1998 

$ (81,465) 

98,492 
(17,348) 

(126) 
247 

2,773 

2,573 

71,450 
(58,584) 

12,866 

(42,106) 

(42,106) 

(26,667) 
37,039 

$ 10,372 

$ 203,561 

1997 

$ (36,337) 

93,566 
(20,074) 

14,908 

52,063 

35,160 
(41,971) 

(6,811 ) 

(39,024) 

(39,024) 

6,228 
30,811 

$ 37,039 

$ 206,643 
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CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Nature of Operations! 

Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. (the Ministry) was incorporated in the State of 
Delaware on January 6, 1978. The Ministry owns and operates the Marydale Retirement 
Community, a HUD subsidized housing project for low income elderly and handicapped 
individuals. The site on which the project is located was a gift from the Catholic Diocese 
Foundation. Construction was completed and occupancy of the apartments began on 
November 28, 1980. 

Basis of Reporting: 

The Ministry reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial 
statements in conformity v.,ith generally accepted accounting principles requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-for~Profit Organizations." 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset 
categories follows: 

Unrestricted Net Assets are those assets that are available for the support of operations 
and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be limited by other 
factors such as by contract or board designation. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions 
have not been met and trust activity and pledges receivable for which the ultimate 
purpose of the proceeds is not permanently restricted. 
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· Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

Financial Statement Presentation, continued: 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require by 
donor restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made 
available for operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 

Investments: 

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market value. Investment income on the 
statement of activities includes interest, net of consulting and custodial costs. 

Building and Improvements and Equipment: 

Building and improvements and equipment are recorded at cost. Expenditures for major 
renewals and betterments which extend the useful lives of property and equipment are to be 
capitalized; expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. 
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets on a straight-line basis. 

Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable. 
Management does not believe that there are any material impainnents as of June 30, 1998 or 
1997. 

Contributed Services: 

The Ministry receives services from unpaid volunteers in organizing activities for residents of 
the community. The value of these contributed services is not reflected in the financial 
statements since the services provided by the volunteers do not require specialized skills and 
would not be purchased by the Ministry if the volunteer services were not available. 

2. Investments: 

The Ministry, under tenus of its agreement with the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, has established accounts to segregate tenant security deposits, replacement 
reserves and residual receipts. These accounts comprise the investment amounts on the 
balance sheet. The funds, which are invested in money market accounts, are not available for 
current use without approval of HUD and, accordingly, have been classified as temporarily 
restricted assets. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

2. Investments, continued: 

The composition of investments as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 was as follows: 

1998 1997 

Tenant security deposits $ 24,299 $ 24,473 
Replacement reserves . 39,434 45,675 
Residual receipts 317,945 365,806 

$ 3$1,678 $ 435,954 

Tenant Security Deposits: 

The Ministry collects a security deposit on each unit. These funds are maintained in an 
account separate from that used for general project operations. 

Replacement Reserves: 

The Ministry is required by HUD to deposit $1,695 monthly into a restricted account. These 
funds are to be used only to fund extraordinary repairment and maintenance items or the 
replacement of capital items. 

Residual Receipts: 

The Ministry is also required by HUD to deposit any residual receipts at year-end into a 
restricted account. Any disbursements from this account must be approved by HUD. 

These funds are held in a custody account at Delaware Trust Capital Management, which is 
managed by The Catholic Diocese of Wilmington (the "Diocese"). 

3. Mortgage Payable: 

The outstanding mortgage payable balances at June 30, 1998 and 1997 were $2,646,586 and 
$2,688,692, respectively. Payments are due in monthly installments of $20,472 including 
interest at 7.625%, due in August 2022. Following are maturities of the mortgage payable 
for each of the next five years and in aggregate: . 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 and thereafter 

$ 45,431 
49,018 
52,890 
57,066 
61,573 

2,380,608 

The interest expense on this mortgage during the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 was 
$203,294 and $206,395, respectively. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

4. Pension Plan: 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time 
lay employees of the Diocese, including the Ministry. The Plan calls for benefits to be paid 
to eligible employees at retirement based on compensation, as defined. Contributions to the 
Plan from the Ministry reflect an allocation by the Diocese based on Ministry eligible salaries 
as a percentage of total eligible salaries. The pension expense for the years ended June 30, 
1998 and 1997 was $5,300 and $5,200, respectively, and is reflected in general and 
administrative expenses in the statement of activities. The 1998 amount includes $3,700 for 
the lay employees and $1,600 for the religious employees. The 1997 amount includes $3,600 
for the lay employees and $1,600 for the religious employees. 

5. Related Party Transactions: 

Certain members of the Ministry's Board of Directors are also members of the Finance 
Council of the Diocese. 

The Diocese pays, on behalf of the Ministry, the group term life insurance and long-term 
disability benefits. These expenses are not reimbursed or reflected on the financial 
statements of the Ministry. 

6. Income Taxes: 

The Ministry is a not-for-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from 
federal taxation under Section 501 (c)(3) for the Internal Revenue Code. 
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CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

Supplemental Schedule of Expenses 
for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 

1998 1997 
General and administrative expenses: 

Office salaries $ 32,289 $ 32,368 
Office expenses 5,216 3,155 
Pension 5,300 5,200 
Manager salaries 34,316 32,017 
Auditing expense 7,500 14,600 
Telephone 4,927 4,807 
Miscellaneous administrative expenses 7,242 11,247 

Total administrative expenses 96,790 103,394 

Operating expenses: 
Janitor supplies 1,004 1,105 
Gasoline, oil, and grease 2,120 2,548 
Electric 19,705 15,936 
Water 9,779 9,365 
Exterminating contract 700 2,180 
Trash removal 9,455 9,423 
Miscellaneous operating expenses 1,432 1,472 

Total operating expenses 44,195 42,029 

Maintenance expenses: 
Grounds, supplies, and replacements 23,230 22,238 
Repairs payroll 60,923 57,822 
Repairs material 30,776 31,463 
Repairs contracts 49,716 44,314 
Motor vehicle repairs 2,531 1,536 

Total maintenance expenses 167,176 157,373 

Taxes and insurance: 
Payroll taxes 7,237 6,301 
Insurance 49,738 51,243 

Total taxes and insurance 56,975 57,544 

Interest on debt 203,294 206,395 
Depreciation expense 98,492 93,566 

Total expenses $ 666,922 $ 660,301 
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CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

Supplemental Data Required by HUD 
as of June 30,1998 

Statements of AccountslNotes Receivable Not applicable. 

Statement ofDelinguent Accounts Receivable Not applicable. 

Schedule of Mortgage Escrow Deposits 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. is not subject to property taxes due to its tax-exempt status. 
The insurance is presently paid from non-escrowed funds as it is billed. 

Tenant Security Deposits $24.299 
The above deposits are held in a separate account identified as security ~eposits. 

Repair and Replacement Funds and Residual Receipts $357,379 
The following sets forth Repair and Replacement Funds (held by PNC Bank, N.A.) and Residual 
Receipts (held by CoreStates Bank, N.A.) 

Balance as of June 3D, 1997 

Additions: 
Investment income 
Reserve for replacement monthly deposits 

Deductions: 
Authorized transfers to operating account 

Balance as of June 30, 1998 

(A) Details of transfers to operating account 

Authorization Date 

September 1997 
June 1998 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

5,390 
22,937 

28,327 

Schedule of Accounts Pavable 
This account represents routine trade payables. 

Repair 
and 

Replacement 
Funds 

$ 45,675 $ 

1,746 
20,340 

(28,327)A 

$ 39,434 $ 

Authorization Date 

September 1997 
November 1997 

11 

Residual 
Receipts 

$ 

$ 

365,806 

15,602 

(63,463)A 

317,945 

Amount 

36,660 
26,803 

63,463 

Totals 

$ 411,481 

17,348 
20,340 

(91,790) 

$ 357,379 
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CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

Supplemental Data Required by HUD, Continued 
. June 30, 1998 

Schedule of Accrued Taxes Not applicable. 

Schedule of Compensation of Partners Not applicable. 

Schedule of Changes in Fixed Assets 

Assets 
Balance 
6/30/97 Additions 

Land $ 18,240 $ 
Bulldings 2,982,184 
Improvements 136,110 .$ 49,355 
Equipment 53,129 3,839 
Furniture 40,881 5,390 
Automobiles 47,504 

Totals $ 3,278,048 $ 58,584 $ 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance Balance 
6/30/97 Additions 6/30/98 

Land $ 
Buildings $ 1,230,758 $ 74,608 $ 1,305,366 
Improvements 28,035 11,049 39,084 
Equipment 44,193 3,035 47,228 
Furniture 38,300 2,278 40,578 
Automobiles 36,221 7,522 43,743 

Totals $ 1,377,507 $ 98,492 $ 1,475,999 

Statement of Recei2ts and Disbursements 

Balance 
6/30/98 

18,240 
2,982,184 

185,465 
56,968 
46,271 
47,504 

3,336,632 

Net Book 
Value 

18,240 
1,676,818 

146,381 
9,740 
5,693 
3,761 

1,860,633 

Per Notice H 90-8 (HUD), this statement has been eliminated and the Statement of Cash Flows has 
been presented using the indirect method, 

1 Schedule ofldentity ofInterest Firms 

~ 
i None. 
l 
I: 
~ 

I 
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G.-: 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of Housing 

computation of Surplus Cash, 
Distributions and Residual 

-;eipts Federal Housing Commissioner 

'ect Name MaryDale Retirement Com. 
P~:tho1ic Ministry to the Elderly, 

Fiscal Period Ended: 

_6_'....1Qj~ 

part A - Compute Surplus Cash Inc. 

Cash 

i. Cash (Accounts 1110, 1120, 1191. 1192) 

2. Tenant supsidy vouchers due for period covered by financial statement 

3. Other (describe) 

(a) Total Cash (Add Lines 1, 2. and 3) 

Current Obligations 

4. Acc~ued mongage interest payable 

5. Delinquent mortgage principal payments 

6. Delinquent deoosits to reserve for replacements 

7. Axounts payable (due within 30 days) 

B. Loans and notes payable (due within 30 days) 

'Jeficient Tax Insurance or MIP Escrow Deposits 

H), Accrued expenses (not escrowed) 

11. Prepaid Rents (Account 2210) 

12. Tenant security deposits liability (Account 21 91) 

13. Other (Describe) 

(b) Less Total Current Obligations (Add Lines 4 through 13) 

(c) Surplus Cash (Deficiency) (Line (a) minus Line (b)) 

Part B - Compute Distributions to Owners and Required Depo~it'to Residual Receipts' 

1. Surplus Cash 

Limited Dividend Projects 

2a. Annual Distribution Earned During Fiscal Period Covered by the Statement 

2b. Distribution Accrued and Unpaid as of the End of the Prior Fiscal Period 

2c. Distributions Paid During Fiscal Period Covered by Statement 

3. Amount to be Carried on Balance Sheet as Distribution Earned but Unpaid 
(Line 2a plus 2b minus 2c) 

Amount Available for Distribution During Next Fiscal Period 

Project Number 

032-EH002 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

.$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

34.671 

o 

o 

16.817 

0 

0 

9,209 

0 

0 

18.172 

247 

24,299 

0 

o 
o 

o 

o 

5. Deposit Due Residual Receipts (Must be deposited with Mortgagee within 60 days after Fiscal Period ends) 

Prepared By 
Loan TeChnician Oale Loan Servicer 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Reviewed By 

34,671 

t' 

68,744 

(34.073) 

o 

o 
o 

Date 

, '1 ..... ~ ... ~ ~J!~,~\,. 
,'5 ' 

~ '; .... 
~~,;, 

.~r . , 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------~--------fomn HU0-93486 (12-80) 
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Indepe~dent Auditor's Report on Internal Controls 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
2400 Eleven Penn Center 
Philadelphia PA 19103-2962 
Telephone (215) 963 8000 
Facsimile (215) 963 8700 

We have audited the financial statements of Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. (the Ministry) 
HUD Project No. 032-EH002 as of and for the year ended June 30, 1998, and have issued our report 
thereon dated August 7, 1998. We have also audited the Ministry's compliance with requirements 
applicable to HUD-assisted programs and have issued our reports thereon dated August 7, 1998. 

We have conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the 
"Consolidated Audit Guide for Audits of HUD Programs" (the Guide), issued by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development, Office of the Inspector General. Those standards 
and the Guide require that we plan and perfonn the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and about whether the Ministry 
complied with laws and regulations, noncompliance with which would be material to a 
HUD-assisted program. 

In planning and performing our audits, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant 
internal controls and determined whether they had been placed in operation, and we assessed control 
risk in order to detennine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements of the Ministry and on its compliance with specific requirements applicable to 
its major HOD-assisted programs and to report on internal controls in accordance with the provisions 
of the Guide and not to provide any assurance on internal controls. 

The management of the Ministry is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls. In 
fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the 
expected benefits and related costs of internal controls. The objectives of internal controls are to 
provide management with reasonable, but n01 absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against 
loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are executed in accordance with 
management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that HUD-assisted programs are 
managed in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Because of inherent limitations in any 
internal controls, errors, irregularities or instances of noncompliance may n.evertheless occur and not 
be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and 
operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. 
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We performed tests of controls, as required by the Guide, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design 
and operation of internal controls that we considered relevant to preventing or detecting material 
noncompliance with specific requirements applicable to the Ministry's HUD-assisted programs. Our 
procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion On internal control 
policy and procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the 
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or 
in:egularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited 
or that noncompliance with laws and regulations that \vould be material to a HUD-assisted program 
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions. 

Our consideration of internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in internal controls 
that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable 
conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. We noted no matters 
involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses 
as disclosed above. . 

We also noted other matters involving internal controls and their operations that we have reported to 
the management of the Ministry in a separation communication dated August 7, 1998. 

This report is intended for the information of management and the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not 
limited. 

August 7, 1998 
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PricewaterhouseCoopers llP 
2400 Eleven Penn Center 
Philadelphia PA 19103-2962 
Telephone (215) 963 8000 
Facsimile (215) 963 BiDO 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Specific 
Requirements Applicable to Fair Housing and Non-Discrimination 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

We have audited the financial statements of Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. (the Ministry) 
HUD Project No. 032-EH002 as of and for the year ended June 30, 1998, and have issued our report 
thereon dated August 7, 1998. 

We have applied procedures to test the Ministry's compliance with Fair Housing and 
Non-Discrimination requirements applicable to its HUD-assisted programs, for the year ended June 
30, 1998. 

Our· procedures were limited to the applicable compliance requirement described in the 
"Consolidated Audit Guide for Audits ofOOD Programs" issued by the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development, Office of Inspector GeneraL Our procedures were substantially less in 
scope than an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion on the Ministry's 
compliance with the Fair Housing and Non-Discrimination requirements. Accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported 
herein under the Guide. 

This report is intended for the information of management and the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not 
limited. 

August 7, 1998 
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PricewaterhouseCoopers UP 
2400 Eleven Penn Center 
Philadelphia PA 19103-2962 
Telephone (215) 9638000 
Facsimile (215) 963 8700 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with 
Specific Requirements Applicable to Major HUD Programs 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

We have audited the financial statements of Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. (the Ministry) 
HUD Project No. 032-EH002 as of and for the year ended June 30, 1998 and have issued our report 
thereon dated August 7, 1998. In addition, we have audited the Ministry's compliance with the 
specific program requirements governing 

• Management, maintenance, and replacement reserve 
• Federal financial reports 
• Application, eligibility and re-examination of tenants 
• Security deposits 
• Mortgage status 
• Residual receipts 
• Cash receipts and disbursements 

that are applicable to each of its major HUD-assisted programs, for the year ended June 30, 1998. 
The management of the Ministry is responsible for compliance with those requirements. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with those requirements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, 
Govenunent Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the 
"Consolidated Audit Guide for Audits ofHUD Programs" (the Guide) issued by the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development, Office of Inspector General. Those standards and the Guide 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material 
noncompliance with the requirements referred to above occurred. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about the Ministry's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
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In our opinion, the Ministry complied, in all material respects, with the requirements described 
above that are applicable to each of its major HUD-assisted programs for the year ended June 30, 
1998. 

This report is intended for the infonnation of management and the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not 
limited. 

August 7, 1998 
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CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

Current Year FindinQs 

None noted. 

Prior Year Findings 

None noted. 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
June 30, 1998 
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August 7, 1998 

CATHOLIC MINISTRY TO THE ELDERLY, INC. 

Supplementary Data 

Certificate of Officers 

Run Project No. 032-EH002 

E.I. No. 51-0255891 

June 30, 1998 

We hereby certify that we have examined the accompanying 
financial statements, supporting schedules, and supplementary 
data of the Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. and, to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, the same is complete and 
accurate. 
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':tatement of I ~rofit and Loss 
I 

u.s. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of Housing 
Federal Housing Commissioner 

OMB Approval No. 2502-0052 (Exp. 9130/98) 

'Jlic reporting burden for this collection of:nformation is estimated to average 1 hour pe, response, including the time for reviewing instructions, seanching existing 
.a sources. gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of infomnation. Send comments regarding this burden estimate 

I 
,lr ;1i:1Y other aspect of this collection of infomnation, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Reports Management Officer, Paperwork Reduction Project 
'2502·0052). Office of Information Technology, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. Washington, D.C. 20410-3600. This agency may not collect this 
~formatior,. and you are not required to complete this form, unless it disp~ays a currently valid OMS control number. . 

I Do not send this form to the above address. 
; for Month/Period Project Number: Projce: Name: MaryDale Reti~ement Community/ 
1 Se9inning: 7/1/97 Ending: 6/30/98 032-EH002 Catholic Ministry to the Elderly. Inc. 

I Patti DescrIption of Account 

Apartments or Member Carrying Charges (Coops) 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

i , 

Rental 
Income 

5100 

Vacancies 
5200 

Financial 
Revenue 

5400 

Other 
Revenue 

5900 

Tenant Assistance Payments 

'Furniture and Equipment 

Stores and Commercial 

Garage and Parking Spaces 

Flexible Subsidy Income 

Misce"aneous (specify) 

Total Rent Revenue Potential at 100% Occupancy 

Apartments 

Furniture and Equipment 

Stores and Commercial 

Garage and Parking Spaces 

Misceilaneous (specify) 

Total Vacancies 

Net Rental ~evenue Rent Revenue Less Vacancies 

Elderly and Congregate Services Income-5300 

Total Service Income (Schedule Attached) 

. Interest Income-Project Operations 

Income from Investments-Residual Receiplsd 

Income from Investments-Reserve for Replacement 

Income from Investments--Miscellaneous 

Total Financial Revenue 

Laundry and Vending 

NSF and Late Charges 

Damages and Cleaning Fees 

Forfeited Tenant Security Deposits 

Other Revenue (specify) 

Total other Revenue 

Total Revenue 

Advertising 

Other Administrative Expense 

Office Salaries 

Office Supplies 

Office or Model Apartment Rent 

Administrative Management 
Expenses Manager or Superintendent Salaries 
620016300 

Utilities 
Expense 

5400 

Manager or Superintendent Rent Free Unit 

Legal Expenses (Project) 

Auditing Expenses (Project) 

Bookkeeping Fees/Accounting Services 

Telephone and Answering Service 

Bad Debts 

Miscellaneous Administrative Expenses (specify) 

Total Administrative Expenses 

FuelOWCoal 

Electricity (Light and Misc. Power) 

Water 

Gas 

Sewer 

Total Utilities Expense 

• ~I amounts must be rounded to the nearest dollar; S.50· and ~v~~ •. 

Acct. No. 

5120 

5121 

5130 

5140 

5170 

5180 

5190 

5220 
5230 
5240 

5270 

5290 

5300 
5410 

5430 

5440 

5490 

5910 
5920 

5930 

5940 

5990 

6210 

6250 

6310 

6311 
6312 

6320 
6330 

6331 

6340 
6350 

6351 

6360 

5370 

6390 

6420 

5450 

5451 

6452 

6453 

Amount> 

$ 190.535 
$ 376.624 
$ 0 
$ 0 
$ 0 
$ 0 
S 0 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

o 
15,602 

1.746 
950 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

$ 0 
$ 7.242 
$ 32.289 
$ 5,216 
$ 0 
$ 0 
s 34.316 
S 0 
$ 0 
$ 7.500 
$ 0 
$ '4.927 
$ 0 
$ 5.300 

$ 0 
$ 19.705 
$ 9.779 
$ 2.120 
$ 0 

( 

$ 

$ 

$ 

., 

~+" .. 

"'~. 

;~'. : 

o 
567.159 

$ 0 
$ 5,85.457 

.. ;,.. .. 
::~~:~fi;';)' " ;;:~ ... ~ .. 

ii" .~ :~. ~_ .t&;i~: 

.' '.:' '~t.~t:: -:.' ;/:' 
~. t", ~:ii :,' 

:- .#~ _ .. ~ c~·_ .~ ....... ; !.; 

$ 96.790 
"'!-o{ '" ,.. . .;-- ~>1'::'" • f' 

,".... ;.""., ..... 

·t,_ 

. ~ '.': "'" .... ~ .._ *,.. .f·_ 

$ . J! _ •. 6.9.4......_ . 
form HUD-92410 (7/91) 
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r 

operating and 
Maintenance 

Expenses 
6500 

Taxes 
and 

Insurance 
6700 

Financial 
Expenses 

6800 

Elderly & 
Congregate 

Service 
Expenses 

6900 

Janitor and Cleaning Payroll 

Janitor and Cleaning Supplies 

Janitor and Cleaning Contract 

Extermir.ating PayrolVContract 

Exterminating Supplies 

Garbage and Trash Removal 

Security PayrolVContract 

Grounds Payroll 

Grourds Supplies 

Grounds Contract 

Repairs Payroll 

Repairs Material 

Repairs Contract 

Elevator Maintenance/Contract 

Heating/Cooling Repairs and Maintenance 

Swimming Pool Maintenance/Contract 

Snow Removal 

Decorating PayrolVContract 

Decorating Supplies 

Other 

Miscellaneous Operating and Maintenan~ Expenses 

Total Operating and Maintenance Expenses 

Real Estate Taxes 

Payroll Taxes (FICA) 

Miscellaneous Taxes, licenses and Permits 

Property and liability Insurance (Hazard) 

Fidelity Bond Insurance 

Workmen's Compensation . 

Healtn Insurance and Other Employee Benefits 

Other Insurance (specify) 

Total Taxes and Insurance 

Interest Dn Bonds Payable 

Interest on Mortgage Payable 

Interest on Notes Payab!e (Long-Term) 

Interest on Notes Payable (Short-Term) 

Mortgage Insurance Premium/Service Charge 

Miscellaneous Financial Expenses 

Total Financial Expenses 

Total Service Expenses-Schedule Attached 

Total Cost of Operations Before Depreciation 

Profit (Loss) Before Depreciation 

Depreciation (TotaIH6DO (specify) 

Operating Profit or (Loss) 

Officer Salaries 

Legal Expenses (Entity) 

Taxes (Federal-State-Entity) 

Other Expenses (Entity) 

65103 

6515 

6517 

6519 

6520 

5525 

6530 

5535 

6536 

6537 

6540 

6541 

6542 

6545 

6546 

654?: 

6548 

6560 

6561 

6570 

6590 

6710 

5711 

6719 

6720 

6721 

6722 

6723 

6729 

6810 . 

6820 

6830 

6840 

6850 

6890 

6900 

6600 

7110 

7120 

7130-32 

7190 

$ 0 
$ 1.004 
S 0 
S 700 

.$ 0 
S 9.455 
S 0 
S 0 
$ 0 
S 23.230 
S 60,923 
$ 30,776 
$ 49,716 
$ 0 
$ 0 
$ 0 
$ 0 
$ 0 
$ 0 
$ 0 
S ~.963 

$ 0 
S 7,237 
S 0 
S 28,775 
$ 0 
$ 530 
$ 2Q,433 
$ 0 

$ 0 
$ 203,294 
$ 0 
$ 0 
$ 0 
S 0 

98.492 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

{. 

"-: f." 

.," 

$ 179,767 
. . -'"\ ';' .~. 

:' . .'~. 
:!"." , . 

.-" ". -. ~. 

$ 
s 203'094 

$ 568,430 
s 17,027 
s 
S (81,4,65) 

, ;~: ,.- . 

. :." .~. 

!. 

'. :: ,; 

. fl~.~~:. ;,,._.It , .. 

Corporate or 
Mortgagor 

Entity 
Expenses 

7100 Total Corporate Expenses $ 0 
Net Profit or (Loss) $ (81,465) 

Waming: HUD will prosecute false daims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/ar civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001,1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802) 
Miscellaneous or other Income and Expense Sub-account Groups. If miscellaneous or ather income ami/or expense sub-accounts (5190, 5290, 5490,5990,6390, 
6590,6729.6890. and 7190) exceed the A=unt Groupings by 10% or more, attach a separate schedule describing or explaining the,miscellaneous income or expense. 

"' '- -., _. -~ .. 
Part II 

1. Total principal payments required under the mortgage, even if payments under a Workout Agreement are less or more 
than those required under the mortgage. 

2. Replacement Reserve deposits required by the Regulatory Agreement or Amendments thereto, even if payments may be 
temporarily suspended or waived. 

3. Replacement or Painting Reserve releases which ar eincluded as expense ~ems on this Profit and Loss statement 

4. Projed Improvement Reserve Releases under the Flexible Subsidy Program that are included as expense items on this 
Profit and Loss Statement. 

• All amounts must be rounded to the nearest dollar: $.50 and over, 
?? 

$ 42,106 

$ 20,340 

$ 43.123 

$ o 

form HUD-92410 (7/91) 
Pf. I- I .... - ... -

DOW 03271 



05/08/2002 09:47 13027310584 MARY DALE RETIREMENT 

'ludgetWorksheet r -- --- --- . ~ .. PAGE 02 

U.S. Department of Housing OMS Approval No. 2502-0324 (exp. 9/30/98) 

and Urban Development 
lcome and Expense Projections Office of Housing 

I Federal Housing Commissioner 
r 

< 

Public reporting bUNJen for this coilS( ~ion ofinformalion Is e$limated 10 evarag~ 2 hours per respon6e,lnc:ludlng\tlelime fgrrevlswlng instructions, BBllfChing 
Bxlsllng data ~urces, g.alharing an cI maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collect/on of inFormation. This BQ8nc.y may not collet:! 
this Information, lind you ere not re q ~irad 10 complete this form, unl85S it dlsplaye s currently valid OMB corrlrol number. 

Project Number; Norma or Projac! : 

032-EH-002 Cathoiic Ministry to the E1der1y-Marydale 7101102 - 6/30/03 

~onc( tuDurt. f\ro.No. HUD-9241 0 audited mtFV01 ~FY02 (no. of mas: 9 Budget from ( 02 ) to ( 03 ) 
bntll ~n~orMamber( anyil'l!l Chsrgat; (coops 512Q 
Incom. Tana~~A$siatan<;8 Pay nants 5121 
SUO ,-f--- .-~,.-.-

Furniture !,nd Equipma t 5130 

Stores lind Commercia 5140 

~nd PQrklng S 
r--" ,- -

aCBS 5170 

Ae)(\ble Subsidy Incorrb 5180 l 

Miscellaneous (specify 5190 
T atli Renl Revenue Po amJsl at1 00% Occupan~ 597.456 A.R1MA 607.R?4 

Vacanc:.Ie$ Apsrtmants 5220 
5200 ~,!lndEquipmen! 'r-sm . --, " __ •• 04 

Storesanct Commerci~ I 5240 

Garage and Paridng S aC8S 5270 < 

~~Cella~eous(speci~ 5290· 
. 

Total Vacancies 15934 .- 1 d .o;t;? 

»at Ranta! RevenuB (Re tRelienue iesGVacancies 581.522 436.996 607.824 
eJdoriyA TD~I Service Income s chedula attached) 5300 
Cong~tu ) 

, 
436.996 SrvCII. 581.522 607.824 

Income 5300 I 
F\n.anclaJ Int!J~~t 'ncome-F>ro e Operations 5410 
RevenuB 

Income from Inves\ms nts-Re$iclual R8ceiP\~ 5430 -
5&00 17094 6A2J :3 QOa.. ' . 

Inoomeforml .... 
ftrR~ 5440 1.377 .. 503, f---: 1.000 

Income From Invssl,ms 1ta-Mlscellansous 5490 165 
Totlll Financial Reven ~e '18.47'1 7ml1 4.000 

OItIer Llilun!ki and Vendlnll 5910 
RfIVOnuQ 

!iSF and Late Cryarg8 5920 5900 . 
Damages and Cleanir gF88S 5930 

Forfeited Tenant SeC! rltvOepos~s 51l4O 

~herR~~enua(5p8C Iv) 5990 
Totll.l Qtf1sr Revenue 

Total Revenue 
599,993 444.087 611.824 

Admin. Advertising 6210 1.012 
~- Other Ranting Experu e 620W 6250 
II3CIO Office Salaries 6310 

. 
~RnF; 39.700 

Office Suppli~s 6311 9396 inDO 
OfficG or Model AO<lrt nantRant 6312 
Management Felil 6320 

~Jl!Jer orS~perint" rlltml Salari;;a " 
6330 33.750 4.fi ROO 

~8ger of SUPQrlnlE ndenl Rent Free Unit -" 6331 
~I E)I;panses (prol ct) 6340 
f\Uditing E:)Cpenaas (Project) 

- . 
6350 9.000 9,OQO 

Bookkeeping Feaa/A ~nllng Services -.. 6351 -' 
T!llsphone end AnaWl ~ng Servlces 6360 

.. 
71n", a.soc 

MlsotlllaneousAdmin' trafiva Exoeoses (specify) 6390 2894 ~ !;nn 
Total Administrative )(!lenses 1134A7 91893 '114.500 
SubTolal&~ (carry \bIwanflo p. 2) 

'113.487
1 

91_893 114.500 

Edilion datad 2192. may be used un j/ supply is amaul;!&d page 1 of2 
form HUP-92M7-A (9195) 

ref. HllndQgk4350.1 
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05/08/2002 09:47 13027310584 MARYDALE RETIREMENT PAGE 03 ~-.. -. ... _-. - .... 

D8S()ipl,lon of Acaaunt jtlcct.No. IHU[)..9241 0 audltW last FY 01 Curreri FY 02 ( no. of mas: 9 ) Budget I'rool ( 02 ) to ( 03 ) 

Sub Total ElQMn .. " {OI imedforwardfromp.1\ '13.487 91.893 114.500 

IIllt1 .. FuelOiUCoai • 6420 
AOO EI ectricity 6450 10945 15 000 

Water 6451 7956 10500 
Gas 6%2 

Sewer 6453 

r otal Utilities Exp8f1se 27100 18901 25500 
OporutIng Janitor and Cleaning P yro/I 6510 
& MaJnisn. JaollOtand CleaningS ppUes 6515 445 BOO 
~ Janitor and Cieaning C ntract 6517 
Il5OO 

E)d.ermlnating Payroll! onlrad 6519 1,125 . 1.500 
Exterminating SuppUes 6520 . .-.-...;....--, 1-' 6,000 G<UilBgt! and Trash R8 IliOve.l 6525 4249 '.-
SeCIJrity payroll/Conti. l B530 

GrtiUri'Ci5Peyroll 6535 

GrOWldSSuppliell B536 
-

." 

Grounds Contmct 6537 20.25B 18650 - -51320 Repail"ll Payroll 6540 37483 
Repairs Material 6541 14574 13 000 
Repair& Contract 6542 19786 25000 
ElsvslorMainterumcel ontract 6545 

Healing/Cooling Rupe rs lind Maintenance 6546 

Swimming Pool MaintE lince/Contract 6547 
Snow Removal 6548 2000 
Oeccratlng PllyrolllCo tract 6580 

D~ralingSupplieli 6561 

Vehlcte & Malnt. Equl~. Operation and Repairs 6570 1691 2.200 
Misc. Op~raUng & M8!nte~ance ElCpen~BS 5590 .. 1 1,677 '2,200 
T otllJ Operatlng & Ma; ienanca ExpE!nli9s 159637 101 314 122470 

TUHllnd Real Eel.ate TaKes B710 
Insurane4- Payroll Ta...:es (FICA) 6711 7,374 10,000 6700 

6719 -MIsCltllaneous Texes , Licenses and PermitS 45 45 
PropGrty and Liability liurance (Hazardl 6720 26,190 ! ~5.000 
Fidal1t).-eond Insurati4 6721 
W~'sComp6ru lion 6722 370 5Q!) 
Heelth In&urance 800 har employee Benefits 6723 23707 31800 
~nturance(~pe IifY) PENSION 6729 6000 
ToIBJ Taxes & In$um rca 67717 57686 83345 

FlnlIncJaI tntere&t on Bonds Pa !able 6810 
ExpeM85 ~ion Mongage eyabhr 6820 192774 141,868 184,096 tI1IIIII 

Interest on Notes Pay ~ble (Lnng·T8rm)· 6830 
Intereat on Notes Pay ~ble (Short-Term)' 6B4O 
Mortgage IneurBnca Ii smiumlSerVice Charge 1 6850 
Mlscel4m80Lls Finane alEXP5naeli 6890 
Totel Financial expe IiSei' 192774 141 868 184 09ti 

Elderly & congr.g;att SIVc;:a-E:qM ~1I11$ 6900 
Il9OO Total Service Expem ~ (schedule attached) 

~':l. for Repl$car ent$ Oep. Raq. 20,340 1.5255 20,340 
Painting Ras8r.'8 

Principal paymentsR 110. 52893 42383 61,573 ~ 

DebtSBnlice (Sec.2 1 & other approved loans 

Debt Sarvioe ReSSN (202) 

General Operating R, seIVIT 

Total CQst of Operati /ms 633948 469300 B11_R24· 
Less Total Revenue 599,993 444 OB7 611824 

come Over ExpeMeS 
~ 

(33955\ 
-

(25213\ Ex~ (D'iJficlency) I 
0 

W~rdfy"""'''' Info mali~n alated herein. as well 8S any inrortrlaUon provided in the IIcCQmpenimenl h&rewlth. is vue and accurate. 

:ml ~(on:M&eOrtat ~:':';"lIls1ements. Convlcllon may resvttln criminal and/orcivilpenall!es. (16U.S.C.1001. 1010. 1012; 31 U,S.C.3729,3802) 
. IOQbI 

AI;'; -" 4/18102 
• Hue r Secondary Financing ~ nly for Sudgel ProJec:U0IJ6. fonn HUD·92~7.A (9195) EdiUon 2192 may be u~ un BUJ!PIY'Is I!XhaUSUld page2of2 I9f.Handook4350.1 1 
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Enclosures: 

Catholic Diocese of Wilmington 
XXIII. FINANCIAL STATE OF THE DIOCESE 

Statistical Index 

Entity: Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 3D, 2002 and 2001 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

. • Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 3D, 1998 and 1997 

• Budget summary for the year ending June 3D, 2003 

5 
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Catholic Youth 
Organization, Inc. 
Financial Statements and Supplemental Schedule 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 
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PricewaterhouseCoopers llP 
Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700 
2001 Market Street 
PhLadelpnia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (267) 330 3300 

Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statemer::ts of activities and 
changes in net assets and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial pos:tion 
of Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. (CYO) at June 30, 2002 and 2001 and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of l\merica. These f:nancial statements are the 
responsibility of CYO's management; our responsibil ity is to express an opinion on these 
fi:12.nc:al statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
require that we plan a~d perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
our opmlOn. 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The supplemental schedule of administrative expenses for the year ended June 
30,2002 with comparative totals for the year ended June 30,2001 is presented for the purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part ofthe basic financial statements. Such information 
as of June 30,2002 and 2001 has ':Jeen subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

September 27,2002 
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Balance Sheets 
As of June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Assets: 

Cash 

Pooled investments 

Prepaid expenses 

Total assets 

Liabilities.ru"'1d net assets: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Deferred support 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 

Unrestricted 

Unrestricted - designated 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2002 

$ 50,772 

173,170 

$223,942 

$ 41,862 

49,932 

91,794 

55,081 

77,067 

132,148 

$223,942 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-2-

2001 

$ 36,283 

194,651 

12,555 

$243,489 

$ 58,437 

8,534 

66,971 

88,563 

87,955 

176,518 

$ 243,489 
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Revenue and other support: 

Co~tributions 
Government grants 

United Way 
Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 

Program fees 
Special event fees 
Fundraising revenues 
Pooled investment loss 

Other 
Contributed facilities usage 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Total revenue and other support 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Athletics 
Athletics - contributed facilities usage 

Youth at risk 
Leadership development 

Total program services 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 

Fundraising 

Total supporting servlces 

Total expenses 

Decrease in unrestricted net assets 
Temporarily restricted revenue and other support: 

Released from restriction 

Total changes in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

2002 

$ 6,582 
23,849 

126,543 
129,900 
177,636 
134,526 
50,154 

(13,981) 
2,948 

350,000 

988,157 

198,432 
350,000 

86,713 
226,984 

862,129 

153,574 
16,824 

170,398 

1,032,527 

(44,370) 

(44,370) 

176,518 

S 132,148 

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftbe [mandai statements. 

-3-

2001 

$ 11,506 
22,931 

140,688 
123,504 
149,242 

19,006 
59,101 
(7,223) 
2,032 

325,000 
19,500 

865,287 

201,752 
325,000 

78,808 
163,359 

768,919 

151,719 
14,511 

166,230 

935,149 

(69,862) 

(19,500) 

(89,362) 

265,880 

$ 176,518 
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Changes in net assets 

Depreciation 
Net depreciation on pooled investments 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Deferred support 

Net cash I?rovided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments 
Transfers from pooled investments 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Net increase in cash 
Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 

2002 

$ (44,370) 

17,052 

12,555 
(16,575) 
41,398 

10,060 

(3,071) 

7,500 

4,429 

14,489 

36,283 

$ 50,772 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-4-

2001 

$ (89,362) 

3,591 
12,788 

(12,205) 
27,056 

2,219 

(55,913) 

(5,565) 

69,500 

63,935 

8,022 

28,261 

$ .36,283 
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations . 
Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. (eyo) is part ofthe Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the 
Diocese). eyO's purpose is to provide a variety of educational, so~ial, recreational, and spiritual 
activities for youth between the ages of nine and nineteen to contribute to the development of mature 
men and women who reflect in their lives the values of the gospel. While CYO's primary purpose is 
to serve Catholic youth, the organization's services are available to any youth, regardless of religious 
affiliation. 

CYO's approach to Christian formation emphasizes the involvement of youth in locally organized 
programs. Assistance by CYO is provided to the p<I!'ish groups in the following ways: 

• Organizational planning for parish programs 
• Leadership training for youth 
• Adult training in youth work and athletics 
• . Consultation and program planning with parish personnel 
• Direct administration ofDiocesan~wide activities in recreational, social, spiritual and community 

services areas 

Effective July 1,2000, the financial statements ofCYO, Inc. include the activities of the Youth 
YIinistry Office. These activities were previously included in the financial statements of the Diocesse 
of Wilmington. These additional services focus on non~athletic activities consistent with the nature of 
operations described above. 

Basis of Reporting 
CYO reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the 
existence or absence of don or- imposed restrictions. A description ofthe three net asset classifications 
follows: 

Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of operations and 
whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be limited by other factors such as 
by contract or board designation. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have not 
been met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not 
permanently restricted. 

-5~ 
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2002 and 2001 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require by donor 
restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made available for 
operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 

All net assets of CYO are unrestricted as of June 30, 2002. CYO l:!ad assets which were temporarily 
restricted as of June 30,2000, which were utilized for the purpose'imposed by the donor during the 
fiscal year ended June 30,2001. 

Contributions 
Noncash contributions are recorded at fair value on the date of donation. Contributions of cash and 
other non-capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted operating revenue if the contributions 
are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose for the restriction' is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported 
in the statement of activities as nef assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions 
which are received and expended within the same fiscal year are reported as unrestricted revenues. 

Pooled Investments 
Pooled investments are stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statement of activities 
includes interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consulting and 
custodial costs. 

CYO participates with the Diocese and other affiliated organizations in an investment pool which is 
held in a custody account at Mellon Trust. The pool is invested in a combination of fixed income and 
equity securities and mutual funds. 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes in 
the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term 
could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. 

Furniture and Equipment 
Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost. CYO records depreciation using the straight-line 
method. Furniture is depreciated over an estimated useful life of five years, while equipment is 
depreciated over an estimated useful life of five to seven years. At June 30, 2002 and 2001, all 
furniture and equipment is fully depreciated. 

Contributed Services and Facilities 
CYO records the fair value of contributed services which would ordinarily be purchased from 
individuals with specialized skills. Services from other non-specialized volunteers are not reflected in 
the financial statements of CYO. 

-6-
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

CYO also records in revenues and expenses the difference betvleen the estimated fair value of 
donated facilities usage costs and amounts paid for their use. 

Reclassifications 
Certain balances in the 2001 statements have been reclassified to confonn to the 2002 presentation. 

2. Pooled Investments 

The composition of pooled investments as ofJune 30, 2002 and 2001 was as follows: 

2002 2001 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 621 $ 607 
Fixed income 51,998 55,672 
Domestic equity 93,379 110,722 
International equity 27,172 27,650 

Total pooled investments $173,170 $194,651 

The fair value of these investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30, 2002 
and 2001. 

Pooled investment income (loss) for the years ended June 30,2002 and 200] consisted of the 
following: 

Interest and dividends 
)l"et depreciation 

Pooled investment loss 

2002 2001 

$ 3,071 
(17,052) 

S (13,981) 

$ 5,565 
(12,788) 

$ (7,223) 

The pooled investment income was net of custodial and advisory fees in the amount of $1,271 and 
$1,562 for the years ended June 30,2002 and 2001, respectively. 

-7-
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Notes to Financial statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

3. Furniture and Equipment 

4. 

At June 30,2002 and 2001, furn~ture and equipment consisted of the following: 

2002 2001 

Office equipment and furniture $30,419 $30,419 

Computer equipment 18,040 18,040 

Improvements 2,065 2,065 

50,524 50,524 

Accumulated depreciation (50,524) (50,524) 

$ $ 

Pension Plan 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time lay 
employees of the Diocese, including CYO. The plan calls for benefits to be paid to eligible employees 
at retirement based on compensation, as defined in the Plan documents. Contributions to the plan 
from CYO reflect an allocation by the Diocese based on CYO's eligible salaries as a percer..tage of 
total eligible salaries. The pension expense for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 was 
approximately $13,100 and $7,900, respectively, and is reflected in management and general 
expenses on the statement of activities. 

S. Related Party Transactions 

Certain members ofCYO's board are also board members ofthe Diocese, a related entity. 

For the years ended June 30,2002 and 2001, the Diocese provided funding in the amount of $129,900 
and $123,504, respectively, to support the operations ofCYO. 

CYO reimburses the Diocese for wages, payroll taxes, and health benefits the Diocese disburses on 
behalf of CYO. For the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, these expenses totaled $237,220 and 
$217,160, respectively. Of these balances, unpaid amounts of approximately $10,700 and $15,400, 
respectively, are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses for the years ended June30, 
2002 and 2001. 

The Diocese pays, on behalf ofCYO, the group term life insurance and long-term disability benefits 
for all full-time employees of CYO. The Diocese also provides administrative services for CYO. 
These expenses are not reimbursed or reflected on the financial statements of CYO since the amounts 
are not significant. 

-8-
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

CYO and Youth Ministry, an office of the Diocese, both utilize and maintain a building owned by the 
Diocese. The agreement between CYO, Youth Ministry and the Diocese is for an indefinite period of 
time with no charge for rental f~s. The estimated fair value of the contributed facilities usage is not 
significant. . 

CYO receives donations from Diocesan parishes for usage of facilities and playing fields for athletic 
programs. The estimated fair value of the cost of athletic facilities, net of amounts disbursed, was 
$350,000 and $325,000 for the years ended June 30,2002 and 2001, respectively, and is reflected on 
the statements of activities. 

6. Income Taxes 

CYO is a not-for-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal taxation under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

-9-
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Supplemental Schedule of Functional Expenses 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2001 

- ----

2002 2001 

Program Services 

TotaJ 

Youth Leadership P,"ogram Supporting Total Total 

Athletics at Risk Development Services Services Expenses Expenses 

Salaries $ 47,182 $47,182 $ 47,182 $ 141,546 $ 47,182 $ 188,728 $ 183,536 

Employee benefits 7,977 7,977 7,977 23,931 7,979 31,910 26,879 

Payroll taxes 3,463 3,463 3,463 10,389 3,465 13,854 14,624 

Total salaries and related expenses 58,622 58,622 58,622 175,866 58,626 234,492 225,039 

Professi Dnal fees 10,155 10,155 24,872 

Supplies 1,438 4,690 6,128 7,000 13,128 16,641 

Telephone 1,137 1,137 1,137 3,411 1,138 4,549 4,644 

Postage and shipping 7,189 7,189 7,467 

Rent 5,498 5,498 5,498 16,494 5,498 21,992 28,612 

Rental and maintc:mam:e of equip men I 29,872 29,872 22,895 

Printing and publication 13,756 13,756 15,419 

Travel 1,370 1,370 1,370 4,110 1,368 5,478 6,838 

Confereoces and meetings 2,257 2,257 2,257 6,771 2,257" 9,028 8,224 

Membership dues 2,138 2,138 1,768 

Officiating fees 119,110 119,llO 119,110 118,216 

Special events 7,538 157,805 165,343 165,343 77,545 

Trophies 1,071 1,071 4,290 

Fundraising expenses 16,824 16,824 19,655 

Miscellaneous 9,000 5,601 295 14,896 13,506 28,402 24,433 

Contributed facilities usage 350,000 350,000 350,000 325,000 

Total expenses before depreciation 548,432 86,713 226,984 862,129 170,398 1,032,527 931,558 

Depreciation 3,591 

Total expenses $548,432 $86,713 $226,984 $ 862,129 $ 170,398 $1,032,527 $ 935.149 
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Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Two Com:nerce Square, Suite 1700 
2001 Market Street 
Philadelphic PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimife (267) 330 3300 

In our opinion, t.he accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of activities and changes in 
net assets and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Catholic Youth 
Organization, Inc. (CYO) at June 30, 2000 and 1999 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 
for the years then ended, in confonnity with accounting principles generaIIy accepted in the United 
States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of CYO's management; our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about wh'ether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the 
opinion expressed above. 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as 
a whole. The supplemental schedule of functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2000 with 
comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 1999 is presented for the purposes of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such infonnation as of June 30, 2000 and 
1999 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

September 29, 2000 
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Balance Sheets 
As of June 30, 2000 and 1999 

Assets: 
Cash 
Pooled investments 

Prepaid ~xpenses 
Furniture and equipment, net 

Total assets 

Liabilities and net assets: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred support 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 
Unrestricted - designated 
Tempor~rily restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2000 

$ 28,261 

271,375 
350 

3,590 

$303,576 

31,381 
6,315 

37,696 

152,620 
93,760 
19,500 

265,880 

$303,576 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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1999 

$ 74,906 
226,525 

1,085 
6,176 

$308,692 

23,794 
17,324 

41,118 

165,200 
82,874 
19,500 

267,574 

$308,692 
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

Revenue and other support: 

Contributions 
Government grants 
Other grants 
United Way 
Catholic piocese of Wilmington 
Program fees 
Special event fees 
Fundraising revenues 
Pooled investment income 
Other investment income 
Other 
Contributed facilities usage 

Total revenue and other support 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Athletics 
AthIeti~s - contributed facilities usage 
Substance abuse prevention 
Community service 
Youth development 

Total program services 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 
Fundraising 

Total supporting services 

Total expenses 

(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net assets 
Temporarily restricted revenue and other support: 

Youth Program grants 

Total changes in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

2000 

$ 26,950 
21,840 

1,049 
125,284 
60,000 

147,220 
98,350 
57,797 
29,850 

90 
5,920 

446,000 

1,020,350 

158,438 
446,000 

50,043 
48,701 

177,311 

880,493 

126,849 
14,702 

141,551 

1,022,044 

(1,694) 

(1,694) 

267,574 

$ 265,880 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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1999 

$ 12,308 
54,690 
12,639 

118,483 
28,941 

172,092 
57,109 
67,135 
14,722 

816 
3,913 

280,000 

822,848 

143,227 
280,000 

33,183 
30,582 

129,074 

616,066 

147,112 
18,930 

166,042 

782,108 

40,740 

19,500 

60,240 

207,334 

S267,574 
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

Cash f1 ows from operating activities: 

Changes in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash (used in) 

proyided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Net appreciation on pooled investments 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred support 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments 

Deposits into pooled investments 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net (decrease) increase in cash 
Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 

2000 1999 

S (1,694) $60,240 

2,586 2,586 
(25,448) (8,133) 

735 9,147 
7,587 (5,426) 

( 11,009) 8,399 

(27,243) 66,813 

(4,402) (6,589) 
(15,000) (20,000) 

(19,402) (26,589) 

(46,645) 40,224 
74,906 34,682 

$28,261 $74,906 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements . 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. (CYO) is part of the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the 
Diocese). CVO's purpose is to provide a variety of educational, social, recreational, and spiritual 
activities for youth between the ages of nine and nineteen to contribute to the development of mature 
men and women who reflect in their lives the values of the gospel. While CYO's primary purpose is 
to serve Catholic youth, the organization's services are available to any youth, regardless of religious 
affi liation. 

CYO's approach to Christian fonnation emphasizes the involvement of youth in locally organized 
programs. Assistance by CYO is provided to the parish groups in the foIiowing ways: 

• Organizational planning for parish programs 

• Leadership training for youth 

• Adult training in youth work and athletics 

• Consultation and program planning with parish personnel 

• Direct administration of Diocesan-wide activities in recreational, social, spiritual and 
community services areas 

Basis of Reporting 
CVO reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
The financi a[ statements have been prcpared in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 117, "Financial Statemcnts of Not-for-Profit Organizations." Resources are reported 
for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor­
imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset categories follows: 

• Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of operations 
and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be limited by other factors 
such as by contract or board desig.nation. 

• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have 
not been met and pledges n:ceivnble for which the ultimate purpose ofthe proceeds is not 
permanently restricted. 

• Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require by donor 
restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made available for 
operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 

All net assets of CYO are either unrestricted or temporarily restricted as of June 30, 2000 and 1999. 

-5-
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

Contributions 
Contributions are recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made." Noncash 
contributions are recorded at fair value on the date of donation. Contributions of cash and other nOD­
capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted operating revenue if the contributions are received 
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. \Vhen a donor restriction expires, that 
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose for the restriction is accomplished, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement 
of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions which are received 
and expended within the same fiscal year are reported as unrestricted revenues. 

Pooled Investments 
Pooled investments are stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statement of activities 
includes interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consulting and 
custodial costs. 

CYO participates with the Diocese and other affiliated organizations in an investment pool which is 
held in a custody account at Mellon Trust. The pool is invested in a combination of fixed income and 
equity securities and mutual funds. 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes in 
the market value of inve~tments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near teon 
could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. 

Furniture and Equipment 
Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost. CYO records depreciation using the straight-line 
method. Furniture is depreciated over an estimated useful life offive years, while equipment is 
depreciated over an estimated useful life of five to seven years. 

Contributed Services and Facilities 
CYO records the fair value of contributed services which would ordinarily be purchased from 
individuals with specialized skills. Services from other non-specialized volunteers are not reflected in 
the financial statements of CYO. The value of these donated volunteer services for athletic and other 
youth programs approximated $640,000 and $467,000 for the years ended 2000 and 1999, 
respectively. 

CYO also records in revenues and expenses the difference between the estimated fair value of 
donated facilities usage costs and amounts paid for their use. 

Reclassifications 
Certain balances in the 1999 statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2000 presentation. 

-6-
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

2. Pooled Investments 

CYO invests in a combination of fixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. The 
composition of pooled investments as of June 30,2000 and 1999 was as follows: 

2000 1999 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,553 $ 420 
Fixed in(fome 79,207 63,439 
Domestic equity 135,223 129,990 
International equity 41,392 32,676 

Total pooled investments $271,375 $226,525 

The fair value of these investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30, 2000 
and 1999. 

Pooled investment income for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 consisted of the following; 

Interest and dividends 

Net appreciation 

Pooled investment income 

2000 1999 

$ 4,402 S 6,589 
25,448 8,133 

$29,850 $14,722 

The pooled investment income was net of custodial and advisory fees in the amount of $ 1 ,646 and 
S864 for the years ended JUlle :\0.2000 and 1999, respectively. 

3. Furniture and Equipment 

At June 30. 2000 and 1999. furniture and equipment consisted of the following: 

2000 1999 

Office equipment and furniture $30,419 $30,419 
Computer equipment 18,040 18,040 
Improvements 2,065 2,065 

50,524 50,524 
Accumulated depreciation (46,934) (44,348) 

$ 3,590 $ 6,176 

-7-
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Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

4. Pension Plan 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time lay 
employees of the Diocese, including CYO. The plan calls for benefits to be paid to eligible employees 
at retirement based on compensation, as defined in the Plan documents. Contributions to the plan 
from CYO reflect an allocation by the Diocese based on CYO's eligible salaries as a percentage of 
total eligible salaries. The pension expense for the years ended June 30, 2000 and'1999 was 
approximately $7,700 and $5,300, respectively, and is reflected in management and general expenses 
on the statement of activities. 

5. Related Party Transactions 

Certain members ofCYO's board are also board members of the Diocese, a related entity. 

For the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, the Diocese provided funding in the amount of $60,000 
and $28,941, respectively, to support the operations of CYO. 

CYO reimburses the Diocese for wages, payroll taxes, and health benefits the Diocese disburses on 
behalf of CYO. Forthe years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, these expenses totaled $132,889 and 
$132,521, respectively. Of these balances, unpaid amounts of approximately $6,700 and $8,000, 
respectively, are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses for the years ended June 30, 
2000 and 1999. 

The Diocese pays, on behalf of CYO, the group term life insurance and long-term disability benefits 
for all full-time employees ofCYO. The Diocese also provides administrative services for CYO. 
These expenses are not reimbursed or reflected on the financial statements of CYO since the amounts 
are not significant. 

CYO and Youth Ministry, an office ofthe Diocese, both utilize and maintain a building owned by the 
Diocese. The agreement between CYO, Youth Ministry and the Diocese is for an indefinite period of 
time with no charge for rental fees. The estimated fair value of the contributed facilities usage is not 
significant. 

CYO receives donations from Diocesan parishes for usage of facilities and playing fields for athletic 
programs. The estimated fair value of the cost of athletic faciHties, net of amounts disbursed, was 
$446,000 and $280,000 for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively, and is reflected on 
the statements of activities. 

6. Income Taxes 

eya is a not-far-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal taxation under 
Section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

7. Subsequent Event 

Effective July 1, 2000, CYO was renamed Catholic Youth Ministries, Inc. to reflect the merging of 
activities ofCYO and Youth Ministry. 

-8-
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olic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Supplemental Schedule of Functional Expenses 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2000 
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

2000 
Pro~ram Services 

Substance 
Abuse Community Youth 

Athletics Prevention Service Development 

Salaries $ 21,173 $23,290 $ 19,056 $ 16,939 

Employee benefits 6,363 7,040 5,787 5,111 

Payroll taxes 1,621 1,783 1,459 1,297 

Total salaries and related expenses 29,157 32,113 26,302 23,347 

Professional fees 12,560 11,993 

Supplies 1,732 935 500 

Telephone 855 940 769 684 

Postage and shipping 

Rent 7,715 8,487 6,944 6,172 

Rental and maintenance of equipment 

Printing and publication 4,590 3,510 

Travel 870 957 783 696 

Conferences and meetings 1,042 1,147 938 6,629 

Membership dues 
Officiating fees 99,673 

Special events 304 135,860 

Trophics 2,601 

Facility rentals 1,723 

Fundraising ex.penses 

Miscellaneous 
Contributed facilities usage 446,000 

Total expenses before depreciation 603,928 49,473 48,229 176,898 

Depreciation 510 570 472 413 

Total expenses $604,438 $50,043 $ 48,701 $177,311 

1999 

Total 
Program Supporting Total Total 
Services Services Expenses Expenses 

$ 80,458 $ 25,409 $ 105,867 $107,456 
24,301 7,674 31,975 16,943 

6,160 1,945 8,105 8,122 

110,919 35,028 145,947 132,521 

24,553 7,489 )2,042 16,185 
3,167 9,694 12,861. 15,028 
3,248 1,026 4,274 4,354 

5,749 5,749 6,703 
29,318 9,258 38,576 8,850 

23,230 23,230 13,757 
8,100 4,869 12,969 8,335 
3,306 1,044 4,350 2,425 
9,756 1,251 11,007 14,421 

. 1,035 1,035 645 
99,673 99,673 94,767 

136,164 136,164 121,344 
2,601 2,601 6,198 
1,723 16,358 18,081 12,775 

14,640 14,640 18,868 
10,259 10,259 22,346 

446,000 446,000 280,000 

878,528 140,930 1,019,458 779,522 

1,965 621 2,586 2,586 

$ 880,493 $141,551 $1,022,044 $782,108 
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
2400 Eleven Penn Center 
Philadelphia PA 19103·2962 
Te!ephone (215) 963 8000 
Facsimile (215) 963 8700 

Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
\Vilmington, Delaware 

] n our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of activities and cash 
flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Catholic Youth Organization, 
Inc. (CYO) as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
years then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of CYO's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and perfonn the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disc losures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. The supplemental schedule of functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 1998 with 
comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 1997 is presented for the purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information as of June 30, 
1998 and 1997 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

/ ~~ ,f'r;?;P 

September 21, 1998 
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CATHOLIC YOUTH ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Assets: 
Cash 
Pooled investments 
Grant receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Furniture and equipment, net 

Total assets 

Liabilities and net assets: 
Accounts payable and accrued 

e~penses 

Deferred support 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 
Unrestricted - designated 

Total net assets 

Totalliabiilties and 
net assets 

Balance Sheets 
as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 

1998 
Unrestricted 

Furniture 
Current and Invested 

Operations Equipment Reserves 

$ 34,682 
$ 191,803 

10,232 
$ 8,762 

$ 44,914 $ 8,762 $ 191,803 

29,220 
8,925 

38,145 

6,769 8,762 113,671 
78,132 

6,769 8,762 191,803 

$ 44,914 $ 8,762 $ 191,803 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 

2 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1997 

Total Total 

34,682 $ 33,995 
191,803 143,208 

13,000 
10,232 42,552 
8,762 9,645 

245,479 $ 242,400 

29,220 31,366 
8,925 52,941 

38,145 84,307 

129,202 111,325 
78,132 46,768 

207,334 158,093 

245,479 $ 242,400 
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~ CATHOLIC YOUTH ORGANIZA TION, INC. ;1 

Statements of Activities 
for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 

1998 1997 
Unrestricted 

Furniture 
Current and Invested 

O!2erations Egui~ment Reserves Total Total 

Revenue and other support: 
Contributions $ 6,221 $ 6,221 $ 6,439 
Government grants 28,632 28,632 32,481 
Other grants 10,000 10,000 
United Way 140,946 140,946 108,940 
Catholic Diocese of Wilmington 37,399 37,399 18,280 
Program fees 150,825 150,825 162,595 
Spedal event fees 117,953 117,953 67,130 
Fundraising revenues 73,932 73,932 26,185 
Pooled investment income $ 28,595 28,595 24,889 
Other investment income 375 375 785 
Other 2,920 2,920 6,622 
Contributed facilities usage 261,000 261,000 154,000 
Contributed services 57,000 57,000 

Total revenue and other 
support 887,203 28,595 915,798 608,346 

Expenses: 
Depreciation S 2,383 2,383 2,352 

Program services: 
Athletics 143,572 143,572 146,574 
Substance abuse prevention 41,141 41,141 42,414 
Community service 35,507 35,507 42,116 
Youth development 160,605 160,605 92,673 

Total program services 380,825 2,383 383,208 326,129 
i 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 129,567 129,567 121,721 
Fundraising 35,782 35,782 9,282 
Contributed facilities usage 261,000 261,000 154,000 
Contributed services 57,000 57,000 

Total supporting services 483,349 483,349 285,003 

Total expenses 864,174 2,383 866,557 611,132 

Excess/(deficiency) of revenue Over 
expenses 23,029 .(2,383) 28,595 49,241 (2,786) 

Transfers (21,500} 1,500 20,000 

, Changes in net assets 1,529 (883) 48,595 49,241 (2,786) 
!, Net assets at beginning of year 5,240 9,645 143,208 158,093 160,879 

.' Net assets at end of year $ 6,769 $ 8,762 $ 191,803 $ 207,334 $ 158,093 
.. 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 

3 
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CATHOLIC YOUTH ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided 

by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Net appreciation on pooled investments 
Decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase)idecrease in grants receivable 
(Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses 
Increasei(decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Increasei(decrease) in deferred support 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Amounts drawn from pooled investments for current operations 
Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments 
Deposits into pooled investments 
Purchase of furniture and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 
Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 

4 

1998 

$ 49,241 

2,383 
(23,970) 

13,000 
32,320 
(2,146) 

(44,016) 

26,812 

(4,625) 
(20,000) 

(1,500) 

(26,125) 

687 
33,995 

$ 34,682 

1997 

$ (2,786) 

2,352 
(20,634) 

8,390 
(13,000) 
(41,925) 
14,765 
40,661 

(12,177) 

683 
(4,255) 

(5,552) 

(9,124) 

(21,301 ) 
55,296 

$ 33,995 
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CATHOLIC YOUTH ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Nature of Operations: 

Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. (CYO) is part of the Catholic Diocese of \Vilmington, Inc. 
(the Diocese), a part of the Roman Catholic Church. CYO's purpose is to provide a variety of 
educational, social, recreational, and spiritual activities for youth between the ages of nine to 
nineteen to contribute to the development of mature men and women who reflect in their 
lives the values of the gospel. While CYO's primary purpose is to serve Catholic youth, the 
organization's services are available to any youth, regardless of religious affiliation. 

CYO's approach to Christian formation emphasizes the involvement of youth in locally 
organized programs. Assistance by CYO is provided to the parish groups in the following 
ways: 

Organizational planning for parish programs 
Leadership training for youth 
Adult training in youth work and athletics 
Consultation and program planning with parish personnel 
Direct administration of Diocesan-wide activities in recreational, social, 

spiritual and community services areas 

Basis of Reporting: 

CYO reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reponed amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

5 
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1. 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

Financial Statement Presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-far-Profit Organizations." 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset 
categories follows: 

• Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of 
operations and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be limited by 
other factors such as by contract or board designation. 

• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions 
have not been met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds 
is not permanently restricted. 

• Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require by 
donor restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made 

. available for operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 

All net assets ofCYO are unrestricted as of June 30,1998 and 1997, with some having been 
designated by the Board for particular uses. 

Contributions 

Contributions are recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions 
Made." Noncash contributions are recorded at fair value on the date of donation. 
Contributions of cash and other non-capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted 
operating revenue if the contributions are received with donor stipulations that limit the use 
of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or the purpose for the restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net 
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as 
net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions which are received and 
expended within the same fiscal year are reported as unrestricted revenues. 

6 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

1. Summary of Significant Acco,"=nting Policies, continued: 

l 

Pooled Investments: 

Pooled investments are .stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statement of 
activities includes interest, dividends, and net appreCIatIOn. Net appreciation includes 
realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consuliing and custodial costs. 

eyo panicipates with the Diocese and other affiliated organizations in an investment pool 
which is held in a custody account at Delaware Trust Capital Management. The pool is 
invested in a combination of fixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. 

eyo utilizes a total return policy to determine the level of support for operations and capital 
expenditures from pooled investments. The level of support is determined annually. 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. 
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty 
related to changes in the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that 
changes in risks in the near term could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. 

Furniture and Equipment: 

Furniture and equipment are rec6rded at cost. Cya records depreciation using the 
straight-line method. Furniture is depreciated over an estimated useful life of five years, 
while equipment is depreciated over an estimated useful life of five to seven years. 

Contributed Services and Facilities: 

CYO records the fair value of contributed services which would ordinarily be purchased from 
individuals with specialized skills. In 1998, these services included marketing and computer 
programming services. 

Services from other non-specialized volunteers are not reflected in the financial statements of 
CYO. The value of these donated volunteer services for athletic and other youth programs 
approximated $265,000 and $240,000 for the years ended 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

CYO also records in revenues and expenses, the difference between the estimated fair value 
of donated facilities usage costs and amounts expended for their use. 

Reclassifications: 

Certain amounts in the 1997 statements have been reclassified to conform to the 1998 
presentation. 

7 

DOW 03307 



2. 

-, 

.J 

~ 

...j: 

3. 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

pooled Investments: 

CYO invests in a combination of fixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. The 
composition of pooled investments as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 was as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed income 
Domestic equity 
International equity 

Total 

$ 

$ 

1998 

393 
51,550 

130,462 
9,398 

191,803 

1997 

$ 400 
46,507 
88,324 
7,977 

$ 143,208 

The fair value of these investments was detennined based on quoted market prices at June 30, 
1998 and 1997: 

Pooled investment income for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 was comprised of the 
following: 

Interest and dividends 
Net appreciation 

Pooled investment income 

$ 

$ 

1998 

4,625 $ 4,255 
23,970 20,634 

28,595 ;;;,$==2=4£,8=89= 

The pooled investment income was net of custodial and advisory fees in the amount of 
$1,107 and $921 for the years ended June 30,1998 and 1997, respectively. 

. Furniture and Equipment: 

At June 30,1998 and 1997, furniture and equipment consisted of the following: 

1998 1997 

Office equipment and furniture $ 30,419 $ 30,419 
Computer equipment 18,040 16,540 
improvements 2,065 2,065 

Accumulated depreciation 
50,524 49,024 

{41,762} (39,379} 

$ 8,762 $ 9,645 

8 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

4. Pension Plan: 

5. 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time 
lay employees of the Diocese, including CYO. The plan calls for benefits to be paid to 
eligible employees at retirement based on compensation, as defined. Contributions to the 
plan from CYO reflect an allocation by the Diocese based on Cya eligible salaries as a 
percentage of total eligible salaries. The pension expense for the years ended June 30, 1998 
and 1997 was $6,972 and $5,075, respectively and is reflected in management and general 
expenses on the statement of activities. . 

Related Party Transactions: 

Certain members of eyO's board are also board members of the Diocese, a related entity. 

The Diocese pays, on behalf of Cya, the group term life insurance and long-term disability 
benefits for all full-time employees of Cya. These expenses are not reimbursed or reflected 
on the financial statements of CYO since the amounts are not significant. 

CYO and Youth Ministry, an office of the Diocese, both utilize and maintain a building 
owned by the Diocese. The agreement between CYO, Youth Ministry and the Diocese is for 
an indefinite period of time with no charge for rental fees. The estimated fair value of the 
contributed facilities usage is not significant. 

CYO receives donations from Diocesan parishes for usage of facilities and playing fields for 
athletic programs. The estimated fair value of the cost of athletic facilities, net of amounts 
disbursed, was $261,000 and $154,000 for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, 
respectively, and is reflected on the statements of activities. 

6. In,come Taxes: 

CYO is a not-far-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal 
taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
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CATHOLIC YOUflI ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Sucplemental Schedule of Functional Expenses 
for t e year ended June 30, 1998 with com~arative 

totals for the year ended June 30, 19 7 

1998 ~ 

Program Services 
Substance Total 

Abuse Community Youth Program Supporting Total Total 
Athleti~~ Prevention ~.rvice DeveloQmen~ Services Services EXQenses ~enses 

Salaries $ 27.023 $ 29,724 $ 24.313 $ 20.113 $ 101.173 $ 32,423 $ 133.596 $ 114.292 

Employee benefits 2.090 2.299 1.880 1.671 7.940 2,507 10.447 16,232 

Payroll taxes 3.796 __ .1P5 3,415 3,036 14,422 __ ~ __ 1_8,!ITL 9,626 

Total salaries and related expenses 32,909 36.198 29.608 24.820 123,535 39.485 163,020 140.150 

Professional fees 9.275 9,275 11,875 21.150 29,455 

SuppJiml 1,488 656 4.750 327 7.221 7,654 14,875 15.706 
Telephone 7.484 7,484 3,055 

r' Postage and shipping 7 7 5,889 5,896 472 

0 Rent 13.552 13.552 8.850 
Rental and maintenance of equipment 13,273 13.273 10.371 
Printing and publication 180 5.228 5.408 3,124 8,532 15.173 
Travel 21 981 142 1,908 3.052 3.052 4.121 
Conferences and meetings 270 3,098 3.056 6.424 2.090 8,514 13,359 
Membership dues 25 305 330 585 915 3.287 
Miscellaneous 752 28 780 12.558 13.338 8,144 
Officiating fees 82,126 82.126 82,126 84,300 

Special events 1,000 124,601 125,601 5,012 130.613 78,054 
Trophies 6,453 6,453 6.453 6,177 
Facility rentals 10,253 360 10,613 6.986 17.599 24,824 
Fundralsing expenses 35,782 35.782 9.282 

Contributed facilities usage 261,000 261,000 154.000 

Contributed services --.-- - __ 57.000 ~OJ:lQ.. -'''---
Total expenses before depreciation 143.572 41,141 35,507 160,605 380,825 483.349 864,174 608,780 

Depreciation 477 524 429 381 __ MlL ___ ?.L£. 2,383 ----.1,.352 

Total expenses $ 144,049 $ 41 ,66~ ~.~936~ $. _ tHO,986 $. 382,631) $ _ .183,921 $. 86_M5.Z. $ 611.132 

0 
0 
:;E 
0 
w 
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CATHOLIC YOUTH MINISTRIES 2003 BUDGET 

2003 2002 6 months ended 2002 Projected vs 03 Bdgtvs 2003 Budget 
Description Budget Projected 1213112001 Budget 02 Bdgt Proiected Basis 1 Comments 

INCOME 
301.50 Unrestricted contributions 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,600.00 (600.00) 0.00 
302.30 Lend-a-hand contributions 0.00 5,855.00 5,454.62 8,500.00 (2,645:00) (5,855.00) 
311.22 United Way of DE-Project Care 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 (6,000.00j (6,00Q.00) based on 1/2 year 
311.30 United Way of DE-Youth at Risk 12,000.00 9,000.00 0.00 16,870.00 (7,870.00) 1,000.00 based on 1/2 year 
311.40 United Way of DE-Community OutrE 0.00 7,250.00 0.00 14,500.00 (7,250.00) (7,250.00) based on 1/2 year 
311.50 United Way of DE-Unrestricted 82,000.00 93,500.00 57,266.91 80;000.00 13,500.00 (11,500.00) 
312.10 United Way of Southeastern PA 2,000.00 2,206.00 2,028.43 1,500.00 706.00 (206.00) 
312.50 United Ways-Other 1,000.00 1,000.00 443.72 1,750.00 (750.00) 0.00 
313.50 State Grant-in-Aid 23,800.00 24,500.00 11,924.50 23,800.00 7no.00 (700.00) unchanged 
314.50 Catholic Diocese Appeal 133,700.00 128,600.00 64,299.96 128,600.00 0.00 5,100.00 increase 4% 
321.10 Baseball program fees 7,200.00 6,300.00 1,300.00 7,000.00 (700.00) 2,700.00 increase fee $1501leam and addition of 2nd umpire 
322.10 Boys basketball program fees 45,180.00 41,000.00 655.00 41,000.00 0.00 4,180.00 increase fee $20/team 
323.10 Girls basketball program fees 41,610.00 38,375.00 1,275.00 41,000.00 (2,625.00) 3,235.00 increase fee $20/team 
324.10 Cheerleading program fees 1,500.00 1,752.00 1,152.00 2,500.00 (748.00) (252.00) we may drop cheerleading 
325.10 Cross country program fees 3,600.00 2,365.00 2,150.00 2,580.00 (215.00) 1,235.00 change charge to per person vs. per team 
326.10 Football program fees 8,000.00 5,950.00 5,010.00 5,950.00 0.00 2,050.00 increase fee $50/team 
327.10 Soccer program fees 18,725.00 17,200.00 15,700.00 17,600 . .00 (400.00) 1,525.00 increase fee $25/team 
328.10 Softball program fees 6,960.00 6,300.00 1,425.00 7,050.00 (750.00) 660.00 increase fee $20/team 
329.10 Track program fees 6,580.00 6,300.00 1,275.00 6,375.00 (75.00) 280.00 increase fee $20/team 
330.10 Volleyball program fees 32,730.00 30,000.00 25,560.00 30,750.00 (750.00) 2,730.00 increase fee $20/team 
331.10 Wrestling program fees 4,400.00 3,640.00 355.00 4,550.00 (910.00) 760.00 ... increase fee $100/team 
332.10 Summer League Fees 0.00 3,750.00 2,700.00 4,300.00 (550.00) (3,750.00) summer league has been dropped 
332.25 KOMMOTION program fees 7,500.00 4,865.00 3,480.00 8,000.00 (3,135.00) 2,635.00 increase fee to $20 
333.25 NEXUS program fees 10,000.00 6,000.00 1,385.00 20,000.00 (14,000.00) 4,000.00 increase fee to $20 
334.25 It's Academic 950.00 1,018.00 0.00 950.00 68.00 (68.00) 
335.25 Spelling Bee program fees 550.00 550.00 25.00 550.00 0.00 0.00 
337.25 Youth Leadership Institute 10,500.00 4,325.00 4,325.00 7,500.00 (3,175.00) 6,175.00 increase fee to $150 
338.25 Adult Leadership Training 0.00 0.00 20.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.00 
351.30 Red Ribbon Race 0.00 1,026.00 1,026.00 0.00 1,026.00 (1,026.00) 
352.30 Memorial Fund 200.00 2,615.00 2,615.00 0.00 2,615.00 (2,415.00) move to general 
370.30 March For Life 2,400.00 2,070.00 0.00 2,500.00 (430.00) 330.00 move to leadership dvlp 
371.25 NCYC 0.00 84,146.00 73,559.00 90,000.00 (5,854.00) (84,146.00) not held in fy03 
372.25 World Youth Day 25,000.00 25,000.00 1,700.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 
373.50 Golf outing fundraiser income 40,000.00 45,275.00 45,225.00 50,000.00 (4,725.00) (5,275.00) 
375.25 Intermed.lAdvanced Cert 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.00 delete this account 
376.25 CMD Certification 16,000.00 14,983.00 14,983.37 8,500.00 6,483.00 1,017.00 
381.50 IMNA interest 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 (100.00) 0.00 no bank interest 
385.50 Investment - Diocesean Managed 0.00 0.00 (19,539.67) 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00 
386.25 Youth Festival 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 14,000.00 (2,000.00) (12,000.00) 

0 
0 
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CATHOLIC YOUTH MINISTRIES 2003 BUDGET 

2003 2002 6 months ended 2002 Projected vs 03 Bdgtvs 2003 Budget 
Descriotion Budaet Projected 1213112001 BUdflet 02 Bdflt Projected Basis I Comments 

387.10 Boys Volleyball 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,650.00 (1,650.00) 0.00 boys volleyball has been dropped 
391.50 Amusement ParkTicket 0.00 4,880.00 4,880.00 7,000.00 (2,120.00) (4,880.00) program dropped 
393.50 Advertising Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00 
399.50 Miscellaneous income 1,500.00 2,200.00 178.81 3,000.00. (800.00) (700.00) 
x04.25 NCCYM 13,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,000.00 figured at $650 for 20 
x12.50 Transfer from reserve 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 (7,500.00) as planned for fy 02 
x13.50 Regional Reimbursement 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 partial reimb.for travel 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
561,585.00 659,296.00 333,837.65 702,525.00 (41,229.00) (99,911.00) 

EXPENSES 
501.50 Salaries-lay professional 172,900.00 178,735.00 101,932.08 208,750.00. (30,015.00) (5,835.00) salary schedule 
511.50 FICA 10,750.00 11,000.00 6,226.12 13,000.00 (2,000.00) (250.00) salary schedule 
512.50 Medicare 2,500.00 ~,600.00 1,456.12 3,050.00 (450.00) (100.00) salary schedule 
513.50 Worker's compensation 600.00 700.00 594.56 250.00 450.00 (100.00) salary schedule 
514.50 Health and dental ins.-Iay 14,000.00 19,500.00 14,150.10 16,000.00 3,500.00 (5,500.00) salary schedule 
515.50 Retirement-lay 10,600.00 10,200.00 0.00 6,000.00 4,200.00 400.00 6.36% of qual salry 
601.50 Audit fees 6,700.00 6,500.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,500.00 200.00 actual plus $500 
604.50 Strategic Planning 0.00 1,042.00 1,041.75 0.00 1,042.00 (1,042.00) 
605.50 .CYO advertising 0.00 500.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 (500.00) 
606.50 Professional Services-General 500.00 715.00 715.00 1,000.00 (285.00) (215.00) 
607.50 Video Creation 0.00 5,083.00 5,082.50 0.00 5,083.00 (5,083.00) 
621.50 Office Supplies 7,000.00 7,500.00 5,808.24 5,500.00 2,000.00 (500.00) this had erroneously been lowered for this year 
622.50 Printing 7,500.00 7,000.00 4,170.94 8,000.00 (1,000.00) 500.00 
623.50 Telephone 4,500.00 4,500.00 2,295.69 4,500.00 0.00 0.00 
624.50 Postage and shipping 7,000.00 6,500.00 3,971.98 7,000.00 (500.00) 500.00 
625.50 Equip. rental and maintenance 26,000.00 25,000.00 13,995.51 23,500.00 1,500.00 1,000.00 
626.50 Equipment purchase 0.00 656.00 616.80 750.00 (94.00) (656.00) 
627.50 Utilities-Broom Street 14,000.00 13,000.00 6,838.69 12,500.00 500.00 1,000.00 
628.50 Household Supplies 1,500.00 1,000.00 638.27 1,500.00 (500.00) 500.00 
629.50 Household Repairs 0.00 7,000.00 2,979.87 7,500.00 (500.00) (7,000.00) 
631.50 Mileage reimbursement 5,500.00 5,000.00 2,847.12 6,500.00 (1,500.00) 500.00 
632.50 Conferences Held 1,250.00 1,350.00 692.85 1,000.00 350.00 (100.00) 
633.50 Region XIV Travel,Conf. 2,000.00 3,028.00 851.61 1,500.00 1,528.00 (1.028.00) 
634.25 Youth Ministry 101 3,500.00 4,507.00 3,892.17 7,500.00 (2,993.00) (1,007.00) 
636.25 YouthLeadership Inst. 9,800.00 8,009.00 7,509.13 12,000.00 (3,991.00) 1,791.00 
637.10 Athletics as Ministry Dinner 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,500.00 (4,500.00) 0.00 program not held 
639.30 March for Life 2,400.00 2,300.00 . 200.00 2,250.00 50.00 100.00 move to leadership dvlp 
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CATHOLIC YOUTH MINISTRIES 2003 BUDGET 

2003 2002 6 months ended 2002 Projected vs 03 Bdgtvs 2003 Budget 
Descrintion Budgot Projected 1213112001 BUd9..et 02 Bdgt Projected Basis I Comments 

640.50 Recognition 500.00 600.00 246.90 1,000.00 (400.00) (100.00) 
641.50 Conferences Attended 3,500.00 3,200.00 931.28 2,000.00 1,200.00 300.00 adult conference this year 
643.50 Resources-lnternal,External 1,000.00 1,500.00 1,160.12 1,000.00 500.00 (500.00) 
644.50 Membership dues and fees 1,250.00 2,000.00 1,193.95 1,500.00 500.00 (750.00) will drop some community membership 
645.25 Chesapeake Bay Conference 0.00 1,100.00 180.00 1,000.00 100.00 (1,100.00) partly recorded in conferences 
646.25 Intermed/Advance Cert 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.00 
647.25 CMD Certification 13,400.00 11,100.00 11,055.73 10,000.00 1,100.00 2,300.00 
648.25 NCYC 0.00 84,018.29 68,223.48 87,500.00 (3,481.71) (84,018.29) 
649.25 Youth Festival 0.00 10,000.00 700.00 12,000.00 (2,000.00) (10,000.00) 
650.50 Miscellaneous 1,000.00 1,200.00 411.62 1,500.00 (300.00) (200.00) 
651.30 Red Ribbon Race 0.00 1,056.00 1,055.85 0.00 1,056.00 . (1,056.00) 
651.50 Bank Charges 0.00 541.09 541.09 0.00' 541.09 (541.09) 
652.30 Memorial Fund 0.00 2,327.00 2,276.86 0.00 2,327.00 (2,327.00) move to general 
654.10 Insur-parish (BABB, INC.) 11,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 increase fee to $2.75 
655.50 Insur-Diocesan Property 7,800.00 7,746.00 7,745.71 7,500.00 246.00 54.00 
656.25 Young Adult Ministry 10,000.00 3,640.00 1,272.47 2,500.00 1,140.00 6,360.00 
657.30 Teens MD 3,000.00 100.00 72.34 2,000.00 (1,900.00) 2,900.00 
658.30 Community Outreach 0.00 2,000.00 1,528.65 2,000.00 0.00 (2,000.00) 
659.30 youth at Risk Training 3,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,500.00 (500.00) 2,000.00 
660.30 youth at Risk Resources 1,500.00 500.00 39.95 1,500.00 (1,000.00) 1,000.00 
665.25 Kommotion Program Expenses 6,000.00 5,257.00 5,257.39 5,000.00 257.00 743.00 
666.25 Diocesan YOlJth Board 1,000.00 295.17 295.17 2,000.00 (1,704.83) 704.83 
667.50 Advisory Board Expense 500.00 750.00 383.93 750.00 0.00 (250.00) 
671.30 Book Covers-Cost 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 (4,000.00) 
672.50 Amusement Park Tickets 0.00 4,271.70 4,271.70 6,100.00 (1,828.30) (4,271.70) 
674.25 World Youth Day 12,000.00 20,000.00 2,100.00 20,000.00 0.00 (8,000.00) 
681.50 Golf Outing Expenses 12,600.00 12,552.00 12,552.56 12,500.00 52.00 48.00 
684.30 Sustance Abuse Programs 0.00 1,854.99 1,854.99 2,500.00 (645.01) (1,854.99) 
685.50 Public Relations 0.00 400.00 0.00 500.00 (100.00) (400.00) 
686.25 Project Care 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 (5,000.00) 0.00 
693.25 NEXUS Program Expense 10,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 (8,000.00) 3,000.00 
701.10 Cheerleading Supplies . 1,500.00 1,438.29 1,360.79 2,200.00 (761.71) 61.71 
703.30 Lend-a-Hand Supplies 0.00 2,406.00 1,995.00 8,000.00 (5,594 .. 00) (2,406.00) program dropped 
709.25 It's Academic 900.00 1,200.00 357.79 900.00 300.00 (300.00) 
710.25 Spelling Bee Exp. 500.00 400.00 271.99 500.00 (100.00) 100.00 
711.30 Youth at Risk Programs 0.00 2,000.00 659.09 2,500.00 (500.00) (2,000.00) 
801.10 Baseball Expenses 10,000.00 6,339.00 0.00 6,000.00 339.00 3,661.00 add 2nd umpire 
802.10 Boys Basketball Exp. 32,000.00 23,200.00 3,418.17 29,500.00 (6,300.00) 8,800.00 
803.10 Girls Basketball Exp. 28,900.00 27,900.00 6,903.26 29,500.00 (1,600.00) 1,000.00 
804.10 Footbal Expenses 5,900.00 4,805.00 4,620.00 6,000.00 (1,195.00) 2,095.00 

0 
0 
:2: 
0 
w 
w ...... 
.j::o.. 
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805.10 
806.10 
807.10 
808.10 
809.10 
914.10 
915.10 
916.10 
917.10' 
x04.25 
x05.25 
x06.25 
x09.30 
x12.50 

CATHOLIC YOUTH MINISTRIES 

2003 
Descrie.tion Budv..et 

Soccer Expenses 15,600.00 
Softball Expenses 2,000.00 
Volleyball Expenses 18,800.00 
Wrestling Expenses 6,300.00 
Boys Volleyball Expenses 0.00 
Mid-Atlantic Expense 600.00 
Cross-Country Expense 2,900.00 
Track Expense 3,000.00 
Summer League Expense 0.00 
NCCYM 12,000.00 
Diocesan youth Conference 0.00 
Youth Ministry Training 2,500.00 
Drug Free Poster Contest 4,500.00 
Technology 4,000.00 

0.00 
561,450.00 

135.00 

2003 BUDGE, 

2002 6 months ended 
Projected 1213112001 

13,033.00 12,808.50 
1,990.00 0.00 

18,257.00 18,257.31 
5,872.00 1,813.00 

0.00 0.00 
600.00 0.00 

2,299.50 2,156.45 
2,870.00 0.00 
2,470.00 2,470.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

10,000.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

659,014.03 383,950.19 

281.97 (50,112.54) 

2002 Projected vs 03 Bdgtvs 2003 Budget 
Budget 02 Bdv..t Prolected Basis 1 Comments 

14,500.00 (1,467.00) 2,567.00 
2,000.00 (10.00) 10.00 

18,000.00 257.00 543.00 
5,500.00 372.00 428.00 
1,275.00 (1,275.00) 0.00 program not held 

600.00 0.00 0.00 
2,000.00 299.50 600.50 
2,400.00 470.00 130.00 
4,000.00 (1,530.00) (2,470.00) 

0.00 0.00 12,000.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 2,500.00 
0.00 0.00 4,500.00 formerly Book Covers 
0.00 10,000.00 (6,000.00) .online registration, etc. moved from 501.50 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

710,025.00 (51,010.97) (96,564.03) 

(7,500.00) 9,781.97 (3,346.97) 
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PricewaterhouseCoopers llP 
Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700 

Report ofIndependent Acco~ntants 

To the Board of-Directors 
Diocese of Wilmington Schools, Inc. 
Saint Mark's High School 
Wilmington, Delaware 

. 2001 Market Street 
Philadelphia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 3303000 
Facsimile (267) 330 3300 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets. of Saint Mark's Ijigh School (St. Mark's) as 
of June 30, 2002 and 2001 and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, 
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of Saint Mark's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Saint Mark's has not adopted Statement of Financial Acco.unting Standards No. 93 (SFAS 93), 
"Recognition of Depreciation by Not-for-Profit Organi7.ations," which requires not-for-profit 
organizations to recogllize depreciation as a cost of using up the future economic benefits of their 
long-lived tangible assets. Also, certain equipment is expensed at the time of purchase that, in our 
opinion, should be capitalized in order to confonn to accouriting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. Ifbuildings arid building improvements were depreciated and 
certain equipment were capitalized, land, buildings and building improvements and net assets 
would be decreased by approximately $4,675,000 and $4,471,000 at June 30,2002 and 2001, 
respectively. Additionally, changes in net assets would decrease by approximately $20,000 and 
$86,000 for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively; 

In OUT opinion, except for the effect of not recognizing depreciation expense oflong-lived 
tangible assets and of not capitalizing equipment as discussed in the preceding paragraph, the 
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the finandal position 
of Saint Mark's as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 
for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

September 13,2002 
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Saint Mark's High School 
Balance Sheet 
As of June 30, 2002 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Tuition receivable, net 
Investments 
Other assets 
Land, buildings, and improveplents 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Deferred income 
Third-party funds 
Refundable advances - state 

fu"1d federal funding 
Note payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Cmestricted 
Temporarily restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

Temporarily 
Unrestricted Restricted 

$ 384,9.14 $ 227,570 
62,969 

1,123,044 
28,150 

10,648,765 

$ 12,247,842 $ 227,570 

287,467 
863,211 

1,168,323 
70,557 

227,570 
404,160 

2,793,718 227,570 

9,454,124 

9,454,124 

$ 12,247,842 $ 227,570 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial statements. 

-2-

Total 

$ 612,484 
62,969 

1,123,044 
28,150 

10,648,765 

S 12,475,412 

287,467 
863,211 

1,168,323 
70,557 

227,570 
404,160 

3,021,288 

9,454,124 

9,454,124 

$ 12,475,412 
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Saint Mark's High School. 
Balance Sheet 
As of June 30,2001 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Tuition receivable, net 
In vestments 
Other assets 
Land, buildings, and improvements 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Deferred income 
Third-party fu.."1ds 
Refundable advances - state 

and federal funding 
Note payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 

Total net assets 

Totalliabiliiies and net assets 

Temporarily 
Unrestricted Restricted 

$ 893,395 $ 244,055 
48,545 

674,675 
24,640 

10,424,605 

$ 12,065,860 $ 244,055 

268,980 
793,176 

1,282,118 
66,156 

226,549 
225,000 

2,635,430 226,549 

9,430,430 
17,506 

9,430,430 17,506 

$ 12,065,860 $ 244,055 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial statements. 

-3-

Total 

$ 1,137,450 
48,545 

674,675 
24,640 

10,424,605 

$ 12,309,915 

268,980 
793,176 

1,282,118 
66,156 

226,549 
225,000 

2,861,979 

9,430,430 
17,506 

9,447,936 

$ 12,309,915 
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Saint Mark's High School 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30,2002 

Temporarily 
l:'nrestricted Restricted Total 

Revenue and support: 
Public support: 

Diocesan contributions $1,207,197 $ $ 1,207,197 
Other contributions 441,036 35,550 476,586 
State and Federal funding 80,865 80,865 

Total public support 1,729,098 35,550 1,764,648 

Other revenue: 
Tuition and fees 8,544,483 8,544,483 
Auxiliary programs 388,469 388,469 . 

Student activities 323,606 323,606 
Qther 2,550 2,550 

Total other revenue 9,259,108 9,259,108 

Total revenue and support 10,988,206 35,550 11,023,756 

Expenses: 
Academic programs 7,031,714 7,031,714 
Auxiliary pro grams 339,902 339,902 
Student activities 1,007,082 1,007,082 
General and administrative 1,424,818 1,424,818 
Fundraising 230,507 -: 230,507 
Capital expenditures 835,344 835,344 
Contributions to Diocesan-held funds 144,578 144,578 
Other non-operating expenses 3,623 3,623 

Total expenses 11,017,568 11,0l7,568 

Total revenue and support less total expenses (29,362) 35,550 6,188 

Net assets released from restrictions 53,056 (53,056) 

Changes in net assets 23,694 (17,506) 6,188 
Net assets at beginning of year 9,430,430 17,506 9,447,936 

Net assets at end of year $9,454,124 $ $ 9,454,124 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial statements. 

-4-

DOW 03322 



Saint Mark's High School 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30,2001 

Temporarily 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Revenue and support: 

Public support: 
Diocesan contributions $ 776,940 $ S 776,940 
Other contibutions 564,121 81,350 645,471 
State and Federal funding 71,219 71,219 

Total public support l,412,280 81,350 1,493,630 

Other revenue: 
Tuition and fees 8,018,422 8,018,422 
Auxiliary programs 357,695 357,695 
Student activities 339,496 339,496 

Other 102,147 102,147 

Total otcer revenue 8,817,760 8,817,760 

Total revenue and support 10,230,040 81,350 10,311,390 

Expenses: 
Academic programs 6,455,141 6,455,141 
Auxiliary programs 349,247 349,247 
Student activities 945,878 945,878 
General and administrative 1,364,391 1,364,391 

Fundraising 235,768 235,768 
Capital expenditures 748,105 748,105 
Contributions to Diocesan-held funds 174,552 174,552 
Other non-operating expenses 35,015 35,015 

Total expenses 10,308,097 10,308,097 

Total revenue and support less total expenses (78,057) 81,350 3,293 

Net assets released from restrictions 95,435 (95,435) 

Changes in net assets 17,378 (14,085) 3,293 
Net assets at beginning of year 9,413,052 31,591 9,444,643 

Net assets at end of year $9,430,430 $ 17,506 $ 9,447,936 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

- 5 -
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Saint Mark's High School 
Statement of Functional Expenses 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

Contributions 
Academic Auxiliary Student Maintenance General & FUnd Capital tc Dioct!san Non...operatlng 2002 
Progra.ms Program! Activities & Utilities Administrative Raising Expenses Held Funds Expens~ Tot.,,1 

Payroll and relilted expenses $ 5,g.j8,115 S 395,005 $ 357,341 904,035 96,953 i.703,4SC 

Other expenses: 

Capital exp . Acac:emic 163,572 163,572 
Capital exp • Auxiliary I ccnvenl 2,158 ::'.158 
Capital expo . Studenl act"viUes 26,:!1 25,151 
Capital expo -Administra~ve 4a,3~9 45,309 

Capital exp, ~ Maintenance 542,0.8 542,098 
Capital exp • Blee-chars ... ~BsllictBc' 53,056 53,056 

Capital replacement funj ~14,OOO 114.000 
Ope~aUng reserve t-Jnd 17.376 17,378 

SMHS Educational To",st 13,200 13,2~00 

Grant ex.pandihJres • Acade-:ic. 998 998 

Grant expenditJres - Activitissl Other 2,625 2,525 

Granl Bxpendit.Jres • Maintenance 

Ad'Jer:isinQ 43,~6 l.3,336 

Athlef:c events 1<,029 14.029 
Athletic equipmen! 39,374 39.374 

Athletic officials fees 2::',4B8 22.4g8 
Au{:"il 20,oeO 20.or.AJ 

Bocks and pi'Jll~d matarial 8.583 3,560 12.243 

Bus prcgram 257,040 257,040 

Clergy & Re~giaus 2,049 10,068 12,117 

Cor.municatiop ~ Copier ~5,363 17,318 52,6cl 

CO!"'lmunlcat'on ~ Postag= &. shippint;! 35.943 0,670 41,613 

Cormuni::.atlon - Prin:ing 9,259 60.367 2,394 72.020 

Conm - TelephonelfaxI pager 1.124 798 25,227 ,7.149 

Equipmenl pun:h.lrepair/'naintenance 31,591 878 4,779 21,773 23,115 .3,202 SS,338 

FlJndraising evsnts 37,505 37,5C5 

Gradl..:atlon 4·j,7J3 40,703 

I-tsvrance 5,8GB ~D.767 5,560 50,520 72,655 

Lbra--y bc-oks and periodicals 21.507 21,5C'7 

)/.agazine drivs sUbscnpticfls 51,932 51,9"2 

Membership dues 3,J28 850 145 5,572 9,5.5 

Occup.:.nc'l . Crea,ing contract la7,762 187.762 

Occupanc{ ~ GenBral 1,300 36,850 38,'50 

OccupancJ - Repairs &. maintenance 7,942 140,493 146,435 

Occupancy - Ublilies 247,SCO 247,5DO 

Olhe" 3,967 3,326 1,244 26,446 6,785 41,758 

Professio ... .af servk.e.5 2G,653 17~88J 4,994 43,537 

Seminars!. co"'.ferenr;!!s 9,264 631 2.059 4,934 16,918 

Stll-;:!ent activity e'w'enlS ~19001 319,001 

Slu::lent Adv6nced ;:'Iacement program 23,088 n08S 

Student field lIip' 56,5<2 55,542 

Student programs - tesUngl other 26:,32 7,596 3,131 4,033 40892 

SUDstitute laa:ners - f=art time 3e,728 30,728 

Supplies. C.assroCrtV lab! education 4C,85C 2,751 43,601 

Supplies, Office 1C,257 310 79 17,794 28,440 

Supplies ,Techn'lo~y 5~,3~4 53,314 

Thea.ter prod.JClions 8,114 B,114 

Traver and me=tiilQs 4,852 1,415 22,947 ~ 625 24.669 940 59.448 

Total 378.425 305,815 511,081 648,915 377,895 ~O8,<28 835,344 144,578 3,623 3,314,108 

Total 6,325,540 305,815 906,087 '"C06,259 1,28',,931 2~:j7,391 835,344 144,578 3.623 11.017,568 

,~locaUon of .'iaintenance expenses 705,174 34,087 ',00,995 P ,COO,259', 142,a87 23,~ 16 

Tota: expe:"lses ~ 7.C31 71< 339,902 ~ 1,007,082 $ 1,424,818 230,5J7 B!5,344 144578 3,623 ~ 11.017.568 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, 

- 6 -
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Saint Mark's High School 
Statement of Functional Expenses 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2001 

Contributions 
Academic Auxili;;uy Student Maintenance Gel"eraillr. Fund Capital to Oioce!ian Non-ape-rating 2001 
Programs Programs Activities &. Utrlrties Admlnlstratfve Raising Expenses Held Funds; Expenses Total 

Payroll and re-Iated- expenses $ 5,510, 1~2 7,68A $ 346,361 $ ~2B,535 $ S53,622 68,228 "$ 7,134.552 

Other expenses: 

Capital exp, ~ Al:ademic 178,70' 17B,70: 

Ca.pilal exp ~ AUxlbary J convenl 23,232 23.232 

Ce.pilal-exp - Student acti'wilies 7.-597 7,591 

C:::pital e-xp - AdTlinis:ralive 54,.37 54,337 

Capital expo - Mahtenance 392.:'53 392,C53 

C,iipltal ~xp, - Restricted 91,~85 91,585 

Capital "pl.cema.,l fund 100,03C 108.COO 

Operating reserve funa 777 777 

SMHS EdL-caUoral Trust 65,775 65.775 

Granl expsndi!ures - Academic 4,515 4,515 

Grant expend,tures - Activitiesl Other !,5OC 5,500 

G~6nl exp,:md'1ures - Ma-ntenan.:e 25,000 25.000 

AdY,ertising 53,88G 53.880 

Attlletl,: e'."en:s 11,92-4 1·,.92~ 

Athletic Bcuipmenl 37,23", 37,231 

Athletic o-:'ficia!s fees 19,45' 19451 

Aud~ 20,OOC 2000J 

eooks and printed ma~erial 5.410 1,526 7.935 

ellS program 3,274 265.00C 268274 

Clerg~ & QeligioLJ5 3.039 9,857 12896 

Com::1unicalio:1 - CO:li&." 4=.171 ',8,580 63851 

Com~unjCi:lion ~ Postage !fa shrpp;ng 26,2B2 7,1'32 35,",4 

Com::lunicc.lion - PrintIng E,618 . 61,912 3,247 71.777 

Com:-:'l.- Telephone/:"aKl pager 1,087 1,127 22,057 24.271 

Eqlf.pment purch.l"epa:rtmaintenance 35,733 257 4,523 21,167 ~ 5,579 1,535 82.104 

Fundraisirg events. 49,3c90 49390 

Graduation 40,C17 40.0',7 

Insura"lce 7,155 6,970 ~,970 5~,49C 69585 

LrDfary books and perio:lcals . 5.3'3 15343 

Magazine dri'Je subscriptions 61,223 6: 923 

Membership dues !,536 137 130 ~,512 8.315 

O:;cupancy ~ Cleaning :qntrae, 171,741 171,741 

O::;cupanc)' ~ General 1,080 32,728 33,80B 

Oxupancy - Repairs & rnaintens.nc.a 2,998 95,971 99,969 

OCCJJpancy - Utilities 2,23'j 24B,273 250,503 

OL-,er 2,9'C 30 1,166 36,389 772 41,267 

Prcfessionaf .services 19897 16,500 3,B9t .40,291 

Seminars & conferences 11,491 BCO 2A91 14.182 

S~udent scti'lty events 333,890 333.~90 

S~udenl Adva"lced Pl5lcement program 25.67B 25.678 

Sludent fielc, trips 

Sluder:l prc-gra.ils ~ lesUrgJ other 25,563 3,543 2,413 6,205 37,724 

Substitute t9ache~ - pe.rt time 26.202 26.202 

Supplies - Clsssroomllabl education 4B,585 2,357 50,942 

Supplies· Office 6,609 2,990 40 13,815 Be' 23,534 

Supplies - Technology 52,582 52,5a2 

TJ"-eater p.·odu::.tions lC,094 10,054 

Travel and meetings 965 1,292 18,121 3.299 25,394 213 49,284 

Total 316,€70 307,588 507,44B 5dl,512 377,963 124,592 74e,1;)5 174.552 35,015 3,173.545 

-o\al 5,826,512 315,252 853,809 910,147 1,231,585 212.B2~ 74B,105 174,552 35,015 10,30E·,097 

Allocation !:If maintenance eJCper.s6s, 62B.329 33,995 92,069 {910.1471 '32,806 22.948 

Total exoenSB!- 16.455.141 349,247 945,870 $ 1,364.391 235,76B 748.105 174,552 35,015 I 10 30B,097 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-7-
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Saint Mark's High School 
Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended June 30,2002 and 2001 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Change in ne~ assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided 

by operating aGtivities: 
Bad debt expense 
Capital expenditures 
Net depreciation on investments 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Tuition receivable 
Pledge receivable 
Other assets 
ACCOLlnts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Deferred income 
Third-party funds 
Refundable advances 

Net Gash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Capital expenditures 
Deposit into bank CD's 
Deposit into pooled investment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from finanGing activities: 
Payment on note payable 

Net cash used in financing activities 

)let decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: 
Capita! expenses included in accounts payable 

2002 

$ 6,188 

4,699 
835)44 
52,631 

(19,123) 

(3,510) 
18,487 
70,035 

(113,795) 
4,401 
1,021 

856,378 

(835,344) 
(301,000) 
(200,000) 

(1,336,344) 

(45;000) 

(45,000) 

(524,966) 
1,137,450 

$ 612,484 

$ 52,132 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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2001 

$ 3,293 

3,177 
748,105 

19,861 

(9,057) 
20 

20,769 
57,832 
63,119 

101,659 
(10,920) 

(4,757) 

993,101 

(748,105) 

(211,531) 

(959,636) 

(45,000) 

(45,000) 

(11,535) 
1,148,985 

$ 1,137,450 

$ 168,692 
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Saint Mark's High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
Saint Mark's High School (Saint Mark's) was established by the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, 
Inc. (the Diocese) to foster Catholic education, which is a creative and living process which seeks to 
develop the individual wholly and fully. Saint Mark's is committ~d to creating the finest Catholic 
and Christian leaders by cultivating each student spiritually, socially, intellectually, and physically. 
Based upon the principles and values of the Gospels and traditions ofCat.'1olic doctrine, the Saint 
Mark's program offers opportunities for religious fonnation and practice, a curriculum of academic 
excellence and a wide variety of extra- and co-curricular activities. 

These stateme:1ts present the operating results of Saint Mark's, which is an operating segment of the 
Diocese of Wilmington Schools, Inc. 

Basis of Reporting 
Saint Mark's reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial statements in 
confonnity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements a:1d the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual resul':s could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset 
classifications follows: 

• Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of operations and 
whose use is not e)(ternal1y restricted, although their use may be limited by othei factors such as 
by contract or board designation. 

• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have not 
been met, and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not 
permanently restricted. 

• Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require by donor 
restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made available for 
operations in accordance ""1th donor restrictions. As of June 30, 2002 and 2001 there were no 
permanently restricted net assets. 

-9-
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Saint Mark's High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Contributions 
Noncash contributions are recorded at fair market value on the date of donation. Contributions of 
cash and other non-capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted operating revenue if the 
contributions are received with donor stipulations that limit the us.e of the dona~ed assets. VI'hen a 
donor restriction expires, that'is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose for the 
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets 
and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted 
contributio:Js which are received and expended within the same fiscal year are reported as 
unrestricted revenues. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
. Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less and a no-penalty certificate of deposit that is convertible on demand. Saint Mark's 
investments in cash and cash equivalents are interest-bearing. At times, these amounts may exceed 
federally insured limits. 

Investments 
Investments are stated at fair value. Investment income on the statement of activities includes 
interest and dividends and realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consulting and custodial 
costs. 

Saint Mark's participates with the Diocese and other affiliated organizations in an investment pool 
which is held in a custody account at Mellon Trust. The pool is invested in a combination of fixed 
income, equity securities, and mutual fimds. 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, ar:.d credit risk. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty related to cha..TJ.ges in 
the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near 
term could r.1aterially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. 

Saint Mark's also invests in bank certificates of deposit (CD's) with maturities greater than 90 days, 
but less than one year. 

Pledges Receivable 
Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value as pledges receivable 
and contributions in the period the promise is received. Unconditional promises that are expected to 
be collected in future years are recorded at the net present value of their estimated future cash flows. 
The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in 
which the promises are received. Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. 
Conditional promises are not included as support until the conditions are substantially met. 
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Saint Mark's High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Land, Buildings, and Improvements 

Land, buildings, and certain lanq and building improvements are capitalized based on historical cost. 
All other long-lived assets are expensed at the time of purchase (except assets utilized pursuant to a 
capitalized lease - see footnote 5). 

Accrued Liabilities - Faculty Contracts Payable 
Saint Mark's Professional Employee Contracts for faculty are for the ten-month period from 
Augtlst 20,2001 through June 20, 2002 and August 20,2000 through June 20, 2001, respectively. 
Many faculty voluntarily elect to receive their payrnent for services over twelve months, rather than 
ten. At year-end, Saint Mark's records a liability for earned but unpaid faculty compensation 
including the related payroll taxes. As of June 30,2002 and 2001, Saint Mark's had accrued 
liabilities-faculty contracts pcyable of $754,580 and $697,637, respectively. 

Deferred Income 
Deferred income of Saint Mark's represents tuition, fees, bus deposits, math & science camp fees, 
certain donations and grants received in advance for the £scal 2002 - 2003 and 200 1 - 2002 school 
years. 

Vacation 
Saint Mark's recognizes the cost of vested vacation pay as earned by employees. 

Contributed Services 
Saint Mark's receives services from unpaid volunteers in organizing activities for students and 
various Saint Mark's programs. The value of these contributed services is not reflected in the 
accompanying fir:.ancial statements since the services provided by the volunteers do not require 
specialized skills and would not be purchased by Saint Mark's if the volunteer services were not 
available. 

Description of Program and Supporting Services 
The foHowing program and supporting services are included in the accompanying financial 
statements: 

Academic programs. Provide quality secondary education based on a core curriculum and a broad 
spectrum of electives which enables students to recognize and challenge their indi vidual abilities; 
foster knowledge; stimulate interest; facilitate a dynamic, creative curriculum that motivates students. 
to think critically, analyze data and draw conclusions; provide pastoral care program and religious 
education as an integral part of student's education; instill a distinctive Catholic atmosphere oflived 
Gospel values and principles and ~he t:aditions of Catholicism; include facilities, classrooms, and 
laboratories with the technology and equipment needed to educate for future learning and life. 

Auxiliary programs. Includes the operations ofthe bus program, cafeteria, vending machines, 
parking,.convent, facility rental and commission from bookstore sales. 

Student activities. Includes all extracurricular activities such as proms, dances, graduation expenses, 
athletic contests, theater productions, and retreat expenses. 
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Saint Mark's High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Expense Allocation 
The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional 
basis in the Statements of Activities and in the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, 
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. 

Reclassificatio ns 
Certain balances in the 2001 statements have been reclassified to confonn to the 2002 presentation. 

2. Concentration of Credit Risk 

The financial instruments that are exposed to cO:Jcentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash 
equivalents. The cash equivalents are high-quality, short-term securities placed with institutions with 
high credit ratings. $aint Mark's has accounts with Citizens Bank, PNC Bank, and Wilmington 
Trust. At times these accounts may exceed federally inst.:.red limits. 

3. Tuition Receivable 

At June 30,2002 and 2001, tuition receivable consisted of the following: 

Tuition receiva'::>ie 
Less: Allowance for uncol1ectibles 

2002 2001 

$ '174,969 
(112,000) 

$ 62,969 

$ 160,545 
(112,000) 

$ 48,545 

During 2002, Saint Mark's wrote off $11,453 in aged receivable balances, which had been fully 
reserved. This v.'lite-off did not impact the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. 

4. Investments 

The composition of investments as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 was as follows: 

2002 2001 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed income 

$ 55,682 $ 5,449 

Domestic equity 
International equity 

Subtotal pooled investments 

Bank certificates of deposit 

Total investments 
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233,987 
411,792 
120,583 

822,044 

301,000 

$1,123,044 

193,997 
379,218 

96,011 

674,675 

-
$ 674,675 

DOW 03330 



Saint Mark's High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

The fair value ofthese investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30, 2002 
and 200L 

Investment income for the year ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 consisted of the following: 

2002 2001 

Interest and dividends $ 11,903 $11,531 
Net (depreciation) (64,534) (19,861) 

Pooled investment income (52,631) (8,330) 

Bank CD interest 1,000 

Total investment income $ (51,631) $ (8,330) 

The pooled investment income is net of custodial and advisory fees in the amount of $4,877 and 
$3,382 in 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

5. Land, Buildings, and Improvements 

Saint Mark's building and the land upon which it sits are o\vned by the Diocese of Wilmington 
Schools, Inc., of which Saint Mark's is an operating segment. In lieu of rental expense, Saint Mark's 
is responsible for all annual repairs, maintenance and capital expenditures. 

In 2002 Saint Mark's leased 120 Apple laptop computers for all faculty to use in their jobs. r.,e 
lease is acco~nted for as a capital lease. The laptops were placed into service in the 2002-2003 
school year. Saint Mark's expects to depreciate them over two years. 

At June 30,2002 and 2001, land, buildings, and improvements consisted ofthe following: 

Land and improvements 
Building and improvements 
Leased computers 
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2002 

$ 783,500 
9,641,105 

224,160 

$10,648,765 

2001 

$ 783,500 
9,641,105 

$10,424,605 
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Saint Mark's High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2002 and 2001 

6. Deferred Income 

At June 30, 2002 and 2001 defeITed income consisted of the following: 

Tuition fees, and bus 
Math & science campi other 
Development 

7. Third-Party Funds 

2002 

$1,1§3,133 
6,900 
8,290 

$1,168,323 

2001 

S 1,245,796 
9,700 

26,622 

$1,282,118 

Third-party funds represent money held and accounted for by the finance office of Saint Mark's for 
the benefIt of va no us organizations and clubs. 

As of June 30, 2002 and 2001 these funds were the property of the following: 

2002 2001 

Athletics Association Fund $ 31,251 $18,792 
Band Boosters Furid 9,859 8,740 
Chorus Fund 4,534 5,314 
Class Reunion Fund (1,100) 
Field Trip Fund 8,971 
Student Activities Fund 24,9l3 25,438 

$70,557 $ 66,156 

8. Refundable Advances 

The State of Delaware transportation grant is classified as an agency or "pass through" transaction. 
Accordingly, Saint Mark's does not record revenue or expense from this program. The activity in the 
refundable advance account is reported as follows: 

Refundable advances, beginning of year 
Grant awards received 
Grant expenditures 

Refundable advances, end afyear 
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2002 

$ 226,549 
211,116 

(210,095) 

$227,570 

2001 

$231,306 
205,714 

(210,471) 

$226,549 

DOW 03332 



Saint Mark's High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

9. Note Payable 

The Diocese advanced $400,000 to Saint Mark's for improvement to its roof. This loan is in the 
form of a note payable, and is non-interest bearing with remaining repayment terms of $45,000 per 
year through 2005. The balance as ofJune 30, 2002 and 2001 was .$180,000 and S225,OOO, 
respectively. 

10. Leases 

In 2002 Saint Mark's signed a $224,160 non-interest lease with GE Capital for 120 Apple laptop 
co:nputers. The contract calls for two annual payments of $112,040, due Decerr.ber 2002 and 2003. 
The lease liability is classified in notes payable. 

Saint Mark's leases copiers under operating leases expirir.g in various years through January 2004. 
Rental expense for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 was $62,853 and $45,366, respectively. 

Future minimum rental payments at June 30, 2002, under agreements classified as operating leases 
with noncancelable terms in excess of one year, are as follows: 

2003 
2004 

Total 

11. Pension Plans 

$ 57,483 
28,741 

$ 86,224 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time lay 
employees of the Diocese, including Saint Mark's. The Plan calls for benefits to be paid to eligible 
employees at retirement based on compensation, as defined in ("Ie Plan document. The Diocese 
incurred expense on behalf of Saint Mark's of approximately $391,000 and $346,000 for the years 
ended June 30,2002 and 2001, respectively. Saint Mark's does not reimburse the Diocese for this 
cost. Accordingly, Saint Mark's recorded this transaction as public support-Diocesan contributions 
and an increase in benefit expense. 

-15-

DOW 03333 



Saint Mark's High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

12. Related Party Transactions 

Certain members of Saint Mark'.s board are also board members of the Diocese, a related entity. 

Saint Mark's receives contributions and grants from the Diocese and the Catholic Diocese 
Foundation. These entities are related to Saint Mark's through common control. A summary of the 
contributions and grants received from these entities for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 is 
as follows: 

Revenue and support - Diocesan contributions: 
Catholic Diocese of Wilmington: 

Annual Catholic Appeal 
Saint Mark's Educational Trust - financial aid 
Scholarships 
Vision - financial aid 
Pension, LTD and Life insurance 
Capital replacement fund 
Saint Mark's reserve fund 

Catholic Diocese Foundation: 
Capital projects 

2002 2001 

$ 188,000 $ 188,000 
70,000 
32,000 39,040 

9,600 14,900 
456,000 404,000 
342,597 25,000 

29,000 28,000 

80,000 78,000 

$1,207,197 $ 776,940 

For the years ended 2002 and 2001, the Diocese also paid Saint Mark's convent rent of $3,300 and 
$3,060, respectively, which Saint Mark's reports as auxiliary program revenue. 

Saint Mark's contributes to funds held and administered by the Diocese and t,e Diocese of 
Wilmington Schools, Inc. These entities are related to Saint Mark's through common control. A 
summary of the contributions to these entities for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 is as 
follows: 

Cont..-ibutions to Catholic Diocese of Wilmington held funds: 
St. Mark's Capital Replacement Fund 
St. Mark's Long Range Plan Operating 

Reserve Fund 
St. Mark's Educational Trust 

Contributions to Diocese onVilmington Schools, Inc. 
held funds: 

Bus Program (included in auxiliary expense) 
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2002 2001 

$114,000 $108,000 

17,378 777 
13,200 65,775 

$144,578 $ i 74,552 

$ 257,040 $ 265,000 
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Saint Mark's High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

13. Income Taxes 

Diocese of Wilmington Schools, Inc., of which Saint Mark's is an operating segment, is a not-for­
profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from fed~ral taxation under Section 
SOl(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
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